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Five-year Financial Summary

IFMBRE

A summary of the results, assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of Peiport Holdings Ltd. (the
"Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the "Group”)

HETENEEZYBREABRAREEE
5,/ EF DB RFERERRR ([RRF])
REME LR (5[ AEE])BEDEMK

for the last five financial years, as extracted from the FEMNELE EE BENMEERESRABE
published audited financial statements and restated/ &3/ :
reclassified as appropriate, is set out below:
RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1t—-HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET FET THET TET
REVENUE 2 279,371 290,590 275,354 262,080 238,406
Gross profit EF 82,351 83,256 93,142 94,055 82,998
PROFIT BEFORE TAX  BBiAD%F 19,911 32,538 36,344 19,806 44,215
Income tax expense Fii5/imAY (3,171) (5,352) (6,031) (8,299) (9,290)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR %7 16,740 27,186 30,313 11,507 34,925
Attributable to equity NEERTE A
holders of the parent 16,982 27,186 30,313 11,507 34,469
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- EE BERIFERER
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
As at 31 December
Rt+t=BA=+—~H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
SB--—F T _—_T-NEFE T-N\F B+F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET FET FET FET
Total assets BEE 432,486 405,506 360,117 256,446 304,699
Total liabilities BAR (67,311) (54,223) (38,785) (71,132) (38,731)
Non-controlling interests  3F#EfRfERS (658) - - - -
364,517 351,283 321,332 185,314 265,968
Note: Bt
The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 was REFEHZE-_Z—+F+-_A=1+—B LI EENTBHE

extracted from the prospectus of the Company issued on 31 December 2018 (the
“Prospectus”) in connection with the listing of the Company's shares (the “Listing”)
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 11 January 2019 (the “Listing Date”).
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Chairman’s Statement
* EHER

=
e
ariighs

Dear valuable shareholders,

Time files and it has been three years since the Listing of
Peiport Holdings Ltd.. Although the coronavirus disease
2019 ("COVID-19") pandemic spreads around the world, the
Group still managed to record earnings. We hereby present
the development of our three major business segments, the
progress of research and development of new products and
expansion of new business to our shareholders. We adopt
down-to-earth strategy for those three major business
segments, including: (1) thermal imaging products and
services; (2) self-stabilised imaging products and services;
and (3) general aviation products and services. In general,
the overall revenue of our business remained at the same
level as that of last year, while the profit for the year
recorded a slight decrease. |, on behalf of the board (the
“Board"”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company
hereby, present the annual report (the “Annual Report”) for
2021 and the plans and expectations for 2022.

HERHR -
REEET - B A - REERERAR LW

BB=F  ##E2019THSF ([COVID-19])
FERHREL  AEERARBAAT - FIE
1515 A0 IR BR P9 $R 45 2021 5 = K SR 1% - A
BHEMMEENESNER - REBEDES
EZREBRRANEE - 171BF R - BIE()
AR EERNMRE  QBBEREER LR
B RQ)VEAMETES KRS - BIERH
¥BERHKAREFEZERNSZ  BEERF
BRI TR -BAARAARBREARANES((EE))
e([EFg])ME2REEERREMER2021
FHFERE(TFERS D - ARHIE2022
FHFFEIFRE -
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TREEE (E)

BUSINESS REVIEW FOR 2021

Global COVID-19 pandemic is still fluid, under which the
Group delivered unsatisfactory results for 2021. Although
we still recorded earnings, the profit for the year fell below
expectation. By contrast, the revenue for the year from our
self-stabilised imaging products and services has recorded
significant growth at 49.4%, which was mainly attributable
to the increase in the number of research and development
talents, and the speed-up in new products research and
development projects. In addition, with gradual opening up
of the lower airspace market in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC"), we recorded a considerable growth in
revenue for our general aviation products and services for
last three years.

The Group attached great importance to the development of
research and development centres and marketing teams,
irrespective of headquarter in Hong Kong or branches in
Mainland China, which were all strengthening our capacities
in research and development and increasing our footholds of
marketing teams in the PRC. Besides, the Group jointly set
up a new company with a professor at the Faculty of Applied
Science & Engineering at the University of Toronto, Canada
during the year. Apart from the provision of STEM education
(including science, technology, engineering, mathematics,
coding and robotics) (“STEM"), this new company also
facilitated the skills improvement of our research and
development staff and the building of our research and
development teams.

In addition, during 2021, our Company had paid the final

dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 in return for
our shareholders’ support to the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

2021 F W E K E B

RREBEEKCOVID-19FE—EAEERIEEE -
ZRENFZETAEER 2021 FHNEZK TN
KIBAE - & R {02 A FIME F 255 FIA0 oK 2 5| 25
Lo EEME  RMANEBBENGER KRS
EBRE RFANREEREZZER
1B 49.4% o BRI FILINAEAS « BRH
RIERMAHBENRAZIER - B FK
MEBAMEER KRR @ BEEPEARIEHM
Bl ([ E ) $EZEMISME L HN - BE=F
Iz & B IERIE K o

RNEEFFEREP LIS HEERORE
THeEERBEIEREFEHANBANS DA
7] EEINSE R EA PN E D E M XN
BERMATEI L HEBMAE - i KREM
RERBINEZEAZRERNENERARIER TR
BERHRERERRRIHRG - BRETELL
STEM#B ([STEM) GERERIE « Hiif - T
2 528 BEEREBA)ZIN LARES
FIRFH A £ BT EE A B B0 RS AR 3#E T P9 AT 3%
B ERR o

Fh - BERERREHAEBNTTF - ARF
B R2021 FREH £ 2020F12 A31 B IEF
ERRER S -



Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ETREEE (E)

BUSINESS PROSPECT FOR 2022

Under the current circumstance, COVID-19 will remain a
major factor affecting Hong Kong and the Group in 2022.
Nevertheless, we are well positioned for the development
of our three business segments driven by our efforts in
research and development of new products and new
projects development in the previous years. At the same
time, we will continue to further expand our investment in
our three business segments to achieve improvement,
which include:

(1)

(2)

Thermal imaging products and services

In the coming years, we will continue to maintain a
stable and slightly growing share of the high-end
market of infrared thermal imaging measurement in
Hong Kong, and we will continue to develop high-end
infrared products with higher competitiveness. At the
same time, some of the infrared products we have
developed will be gradually introduced into Hong Kong
and the PRC markets. Adhering to the Group's good
practice of providing one-stop services, we will
leverage on our existing networks of sales branches
and offices in the PRC to strengthen the
competitiveness of our products and services in the
market. Meanwhile, we will also expand our sales team
to strengthen our marketing efforts.

Self-stabilised imaging products and services

Our products and services are used in the repair and
maintenance of high voltage power lines, in the
inspection of power grids throughout the PRC, and in
air traffic management monitoring systems. With the
increasingly stringent requirement as to reliability of
power supply in the PRC, the number of new high
voltage lines and helicopters will increase, and so will
the use of our products and services. Our research and
development teams in Hong Kong and Guangzhou have
been strengthening their research and development
capabilities and new products will be launched in a
timely manner, while continuously improving the quality
and reliability of our existing products to meet the
market demand. Products and services in this business
segment will continue to be our focus to boost its
development and investment strategy.

2022 FEBRE

M ERIBNRE + 2022F COVID-191A R 2&
BEBEURASKENEERE - BEHREMER
REFIRTMERWELRNEL AL - AR
—REBRABERMATEE - BN BATE
BIEZ IR = REBRIR EHIRE - FHEM
SHELF - AP EIE:

(=) BEBERKRE

BEEFRMDASRT BB LI EA
RS T IS RERSEMIERNESR
K EEREEELNEEHRFINEH
KON EBEm » R - AT E BB
AMNRBREMNTEERSRATENS -
WHERRFAEE R LRREHR
SRR - R BMBERFIE A OBEAE
ENRANMERBETETSENS
B hnsR I E @A AR 7% B T 5 B
B EERE - BB EETHEEE
B BB MMEENE -

(=) BERERBERK RS

ENREBEGENGERENE  TH
BAEREHNKREEZERBRML
BEMLRE  EAZ=PREEREE
EmneERRMANERERE - B
Al FEIBEAKNE BN SEIEEK
BRME RN S ERE KRBT
MBEDLSURES - ERRMLLE
EomXRBHBERE RN - HFIEES
0 N B BT 2% 1 B b, T W SR SR BT R )
B MIEHNERLEERRK  RE
THRABMREERNEEMA 5
1 UEETISNFE K o iEBKIRRA
EmMRECEEZRMARE  REDH
E
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(3) General aviation products and services

The domestic general aviation market includes
transportation, logistics, industry, agriculture
operations, forest fire monitoring, tourism, sightseeing,
experiential flying, and flight school aircraft instruction
and so on. As the PRC's economy grows, the demand
for these small aircraft is also increasing, especially for
the use of drone delivery systems in logistics, which
will have a greater market potential. We will continue
to strengthen our technical team to improve our staff
design capabilities in “Small Aircraft Power Systems”
and to enhance the pre-sales consultation and post-
sales technical support and services to our customers.
It is expected that the general aviation products and
services business segment will grow in 2022 as
compared to 2021.

APPRECIATION

Ringing out the year of the Ox, we welcome the year of the
Tiger. Embracing the new year of the Tiger with joy in this
spring, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to all staff of Peiport for their hard work,
dedication and contribution to the development and progress
of the Group in 2021. | would also like to take this
opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to all our staff
and their families for their continuous support to the Group
and to extend my best wishes for the Chinese New Year.

Meanwhile, | would also like to express my sincere gratitude
to our shareholders, clients and business partners for their
continuous trust, support, help as well as understanding,
tolerance and recognition. We will continue to strive for
better returns for our shareholders and other stakeholders.

There is no limit of learning. We will keep on exploring and

improving our operation models and strive for better results
in 2022. Thank you!

Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEN W&

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of thermal
imaging products and services, self-stabilised imaging
products and services, and general aviation products and
services in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

During the year under review, the economy was still
adversely affected by the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and
this brought unprecedented challenges to our businesses.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recorded the revenue of HK$279.4 million, a decrease of
3.9% on a year-to-year basis. Net profit attributable to
owners of the parent was HK$17.0 million, representing a
drop of 37.5% or HK$10.2 million on a year-to-year basis.

Since the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group worked
relentlessly to maintain effective operations and remained
highly alert to the development of the pandemic by adhering
to the implementation of stringent pandemic prevention and
control measures. The Group achieved various work
progress and attained work outcomes as scheduled in
general.

The Group has committed to enhancing its competitiveness
by continuously investing in research and development
activities to expand its product portfolio and to optimise its
product mix. During the year, the Group has spent HK$6.2
million in research and development, which represented an
increase of 10.7% on a year-to-year basis. The Group is
committed to bringing better experience to customers and
further enhancing product competitiveness. Leverage our
knowledge and commitments, the Group expects that more
advanced products will be introduced in the future.

The Group has been exploring opportunities to create value
for the shareholders. During the year, the Group has
expanded its business to the education industry. \We started
to provide STEM education to children in August 2021.

EBEoEkRE

AEETERPEANEEEESRHEAKE
B fn MRS BIRTE R E an MRS A BB
i 2= E m AR

REBEFE @ &£BEECOVID-19RIEHEM
ZETFFE - BB REER MR ERE A KA
FIABRE -HE-_TZ-—F+-_F=+—
AIEFE  AEESBKRE2794888 7T
BHERD3II% - BREI A AEELAF A
17.088%7L BEF T#37.5% 31028
IR

HCOVID-19RBIAK » RAR —HEBAN#R
BREE  YENEBRBENBRBER  BRE
HITRIBEERE - AEBEEERESATEE
B - BERE EEUSAEIKR -

AEE-BEBEBEERENTREE &
RECERES @ EMERERFN - RAF
EAR - AEEERETERM62BEET
BREEN10.7% - REEH N /REPHREE
B WE—SRESEMOBF o BERM
RN SORL » AEREEMR RS EHRLE
SCHERE dn

AEE-BESRRERBRRIESEE - RAF
BN AEBECBEBRBAZHRE % - RAN
2 -F)\ARRARERHESTEMEE -
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BEEEN W& (F)

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
(Continued)

COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic continues to have widespread and
unpredictable impacts on social, economic, and business
practices, and continues to impact our business operations,
including our employees, customers and partners. We
continued to evaluate the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
on our business operations and financial results, including
but not limited to the provision for doubtful receivables and
impairment of non-financial assets. For the year ended 31
December 2021, we had recognised written-off of trade
receivables of HK$2.1 million. The COVID-19 pandemic may
continue to impact our business operations and financial
operating results, and there is uncertainty in the nature and
degree of its continued effects over time.

PERFORMANCE OF BUSINESS SEGMENTS

A summary of revenue from different business segments of
the Group is set out below:

(1) Sale of thermal imaging products and
provision of services

Our products and services in this segment can broadly
be divided into three categories: (i) products under our
own brand name, PTi; (ii) products of other brands; and
(i) thermal imaging inspection services. Our products
are widely used in general consumption, commercial
and industrial fields.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue
from this business segment reduced by 29.7% on a
year-to-year basis. It is mainly attributable to the high
base period in prior year, which the sales of thermal
imaging products had been accelerated for health
quarantine arrangements under the COVID-19
pandemic in prior year.

Revenue from this business segment during the year
ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
HK$114.6 million (2020: HK$162.9 million). It accounted
for approximately 41.1% (2020: 56.0%) of the Group’s
revenue during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEN W& ()

PERFORMANCE OF BUSINESS SEGMENTS
(Continued)

(2) Sale of self-stabilised imaging products and

provision of services

The products in this business segment are designed to
be mounted on moving platforms such as aircraft,
helicopters, vessels and ships. The Group deploys a
self-stabilisation technology whereby the imaging
products are mounted on a multiple-axis gimbaled
structure and achieve maximum stabilisation. The
products are traded under own brand name, SkyEye,
SeaVision and PGs. We also rent our self-stabilised
imaging products for aircraft to our customers for a
fixed period at a rental fee as well as provide product
training and technical assistance to our customers
based on their requirements.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue
from this business segment increased by HK$16.2
million or 49.4% on a year-to-year basis. The increase
was mainly attributable to the recovery of market
demand for our self-stabilised imaging products.

Revenue from this business segment during the year
ended 31 December 2021 was approximately HK$49.0
million (2020: HK$32.8 million). It accounted for
approximately 17.5% (2020: 11.3%) of the Group's
revenue during the year.

EBRMMRR ()

(2)

HEBRENGERRREHKRRE

ZEBRRENERSER/RRENBH T
a(plmm  EA% - wmES) ik
o AEEERBERBERM  BREE
mMEBEZWMPEHERE - UEBEAX
RENBEM - EmHUAKRMEE@mE
(SkyEye * SeaVision & PGs) 22 5 ° F 1
TEREFHPLERSEREXNGE
MTEPREREEER WEEFPE
SKERIE I R BT 2 4% o

BE T -_—4%+_-_A=+—8I%F
€+ 2K B 5% % 751k 58 /9 Uk & 1= 4 18 0
162 B 8B L049.4% - BRI £
ZHREBRMERENGERNTISH
KRG FTER

BE T -_—4%+_-_A=+—8I%F
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BEL(ZEZEF :3288%5L)
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BEEEN W& (F)

PERFORMANCE OF BUSINESS SEGMENTS
(Continued)

(3) Sale of general aviation products and provision

of services

The services and products in this business segment
can be broadly divided into three categories, namely (i)
light and ultra-light aircraft engines and related
components distribution; (ii) maintenance training
course; and (iii) maintenance and support services. Our
maintenance training courses and maintenance and
support services are mainly carried out in our
maintenance centre with a gross floor area of
approximately 1,200 square metres (“sg.m.”) which is
located in Zhuhai City, Guangdong Province. Our
customers in this business segment include light and
ultra-light aircraft manufacturers, flight schools, flying
entertainment clubs, light aircraft research institutions
and private flight owners.

The development of general aviation industry would
continue to be one of the major national development
strategies in the PRC. In 2021, the total general aviation
flight time in the PRC was 1.182 million hours,
representing an increase of 20.1% on a year-to-year
basis. The Group sees great potential for this business
segment, which could provide boost for the long-term
growth of business for the Group. The Group will
continue to focus on the development of the general
aviation value chain in the PRC.

Revenue from this business segment during the year
ended 31 December 2021 increased by HK$20.6 million
or 21.7% on a year-to-year basis to approximately
HK$115.5 million (2020: HK$94.9 million). It accounted
for approximately 41.3% (2020: 32.7%) of the Group’s
revenue during the year.

PEIPORTHOLDINGS LTD. / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

EBRMARER (F)

(3)

HEERAMZEmRREHARSE

ZEBRRNORBREERABAD A=
X B0 () B0 AU I R ST A fin 70 25 B) i 1% AR
RAEL I 85 ¢ () #EASIEDIERTE ¢ Tz (iii) 4
BRI ERE - BMOBEEIIREN
LRk EZEREBEIERBEREKEM
SRS E - HAREMmEL 1,200
FEHKAFFAK]D - ZEBRBHE S
BRI A R ERER - RITE
B RATIRGE(RLEED - 8 A M o0 14
BRILARBEHESE A o

BAMETENERBEBESFHEE
MEREREE , — RZTZ—F
FEBAMERITRESSLEI182T
BB RFEIN201% > AEERA
ZEBRMEBERE D AlREARE
ENRPESER AEEBEESRT
RERTPEBAMEEEE -

BHE_Z2-_—F+-_A=+—H81IF
€+ 2R B % % %R 58 A Uk & 1 4 38 0
206B BB TLE21.7% 24115658 &
B(ZZTE-TF 049FHEET) 14
REBRAFENRZLH41.3% (ZF=
TE 32.7%) °



W

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEN W& (F)

PROSPECT

The economies of Hong Kong and Mainland China are
anticipated to continue on a gradual recovery path in year
2022, but the prospects remain uncertain. Due to the fifth
wave of COVID-19, a series of stringent measures were
implemented in Hong Kong to further safeguard the
community. Since the outbreak is still ongoing, the Group’s
business will continue to face great uncertainties.

Despite the foregoing, the Group is conservatively optimistic
towards the outlook and long-term prospects of the Group's
business. The Group will continue to invest in the research
and development in order to maintain its competitive edges
and will continue to explore other suitable business
opportunities to pursue long-term business growth.

The Group remains confident in the prospects of Hong Kong
and Mainland China. With our strong financial position, close
relationship with customers, suppliers and business
partners, and flexible business strategy, the Group is well
placed to meet the challenging economic environment and
to seize opportunities to create value to the shareholders of
the Company.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The revenue of the Group was derived from business
consisting of: (i) thermal imaging products and services; (ii)
self-stabilised imaging products and services; and (iii) general
aviation products and services. For the year ended 31
December 2021, the total revenue of the Group decreased
by approximately HK$11.2 million, or 3.9% from
approximately HK$290.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately HK$279.4 million. The
decrease was primarily attributable to the following reasons:

(i)

(ii)

Thermal imaging products and services

Revenue derived from thermal imaging products and
services decreased by approximately HK$48.3 million,
or 29.7%, from approximately HK$162.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
HK$114.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2021. The decrease was primarily attributable to a
decrease in sales of PTi products and SF6 gas imaging
camera from our existing customers due to decrease in
demand of the relevant products.

Self-stabilised imaging products and services

Revenue derived from self-stabilised imaging products
and services increased by approximately HK$16.2
million, or 49.4%, from approximately HK$32.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
HK$49.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.
The increase was mainly attributable to an increase in
demand for self-stabilised imaging products for aircraft
from our new customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEN W& ()

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

(iii) General aviation products and services

Revenue derived from general aviation products and
services increased by approximately HK$20.6 million,
or 21.7%, from approximately HK$94.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
HK$115.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2021. The increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in demand for light and ultra-light aircraft
engine, leading to an increase in demand from our new
and existing customers.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit for the Group decreased from approximately
HK$83.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately HK$82.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, and the gross profit margin increased by
approximately 0.8% from approximately 28.7% for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately 29.5% for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

(i)

Gross profit margin of thermal imaging products
and services

The gross profit margin of thermal imaging products
and services decreased by approximately 2.2% from
approximately 23.5% for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately 21.3% for the year ended 31
December 2021. The decrease in our gross profit
margin was primarily attributable to the decrease in
sales of SF6 gas imaging camera which had a relatively
higher gross profit margin.

4

B R ()

iy 58

(iii)

(%)

BRMZEERRRE

BAMTERERBEEENKERES
CE-EE+_A=1+—BIEEND
UMOBEB LI INL206H & B Tk
7% EHE-_E-_—F+-_A=+—
BIEFEMH115 58857 o #8inJy=E
DR EA R BEA = BN E
KN UWBFRFURBREEFPNE
SN o

EMRERNR

REBOENHEBEE T -_TF+_A=1+—
HBIEFENHSIIEEB LRI EHEZ T
T F+ A=+ BLFENNRIAES
T MENERBEE T -_EFE+_A=+—
HIEFENA287%EMN08%EHE-F
T+ A=+ HIFEWNH295% °

(i)

ARGEREBBHER R

BRGEMMRBHEFNEABEE-F
TEFFT A=+ —HLEFENY
235% WML H22% EHE T - —F
+Z A=+ RALFEMNDN213% - F
RO T EZERENEEERSH
SF6 RBEA R ERISHE R D PTEL

HEERERAR /2021 F3f

15



16

A
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin (Continued)
(ii) Gross profit margin of self-stabilised imaging
products and services

The gross profit margin of self-stabilised imaging
products and services decreased by approximately
1.6% from approximately 48.5% for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately 46.9% for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The decrease in our gross
profit margin was primarily attributable to the increase
in demand of SkyEye 3X-F series, self-stabilised
imaging product with a lower gross profit margin as
compared to the provision of maintenance services and
equipment rental.

(iii) Gross profit margin of general aviation products

and services

The gross profit margin of general aviation products
and services remained relatively stable at approximately
30.7% and 30.2% for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2021, respectively.

Other Income and Gains, Net

The Group’s other income and gains decreased by
approximately HK$5.3 million, or 63.1%, from approximately
HK$8.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately HK$3.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. The decrease was mainly attributable to a
decrease in foreign exchange gain of approximately HK$3.5
million and the decrease in government grants of
approximately HK$1.4 million in relation to the absence of
subsidies obtained from “Employment Support Scheme”
under the “Anti-epidemic Fund” launched by the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region Government.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEN W& ()

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses increased by
approximately HK$1.6 million, or 5.5%, from approximately
HK$29.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately HK$30.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. The increase was mainly attributable to an
increase in social security fee and housing fund of
approximately HK$1.6 million due to the absence of
government subsidies launched by the PRC.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by
approximately HK$1.8 million, or 6.4%, from approximately
HK$28.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately HK$30.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. The increase was mainly attributable to an
increase in research and development expenses of
approximately HK$0.6 million as a result of more research
and development projects undertaken during the year ended
31 December 2021 and increase in office expenses of
approximately HK$0.6 million.

Other Expenses

The Group's other expenses increased by approximately
HK$2.9 million, or 223.1%, from approximately HK$1.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately HK$4.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. The increase in other expenses was
primarily attributable to the recognition of written-off trade
receivables of HK$2.1 million in 2021.
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BEEEN W& (F)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Finance Costs

According to the adoption of the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") 16 Leases issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants effective
as of 1 January 2019, at the commencement date of a lease,
a lessee is required to recognise a liability of lease payment
(i.e. the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to
use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e. the right-
of-use asset). As a result, finance costs of approximately
HK$0.4 million and HK$0.5 million for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2021 were recognised, respectively.

Income Tax Expense

The Group’'s income tax expense decreased by
approximately HK$2.2 million, or 40.7%, from approximately
HK$5.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately HK$3.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, which was primarily resulting from a
decrease in taxable profits during the year ended 31
December 2021. The Group’s effective tax rates remained
relatively stable at approximately 16.4% and 15.9% for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, respectively.

Profit for the Year Attributable to Owners of the
Parent

As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, the
Group's profit for the year attributable to the owners of the
parent decreased by approximately HK$10.2 million, or
37.5%, from approximately HK$27.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately HK$17.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEN W& (F)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity
position, with working capital financed mainly by internal
resources. As at 31 December 2021, the Group reported net
current assets of approximately HK$349.0 million, as
compared with approximately HK$335.6 million as at 31
December 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's cash and cash
equivalents was approximately HK$224.0 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$13.8 million
as compared to HK$210.2 million as at 31 December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the net cash
generated from operating activities was approximately
HK$26.2 million (2020: HK$35.3 million). The cash generated
from operating activities was mainly from the profits during
the year ended 31 December 2021. The net cash used in
investing activities was approximately HK$2.6 million (2020:
HK$0.4 million). The net cash used in financing activities
was approximately HK$11.5 million (2020: HK$5.3 million).

The net cash used in investing activities was mainly
attributable to the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment during the year. The net cash used in financing
activities was mainly arising from the payment of lease
liabilities and the payment of final dividend.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities (31 December 2020: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no significant
capital commitments (31 December 2020: Nil).
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Functional currency of the Group’s operating subsidiaries is
either Hong Kong dollar or Renminbi, while some of the
Group’'s business transactions and cost of sales are
denominated in United States dollar and Euro.

The Group has transactional currency exposures and such
exposures arise from sales or purchases made by
subsidiaries in currencies other than the subsidiaries’
functional currencies. The Group’s foreign currency exposure
also comprises assets and liabilities denominated in United
States dollar. The Group manages its foreign currency risk
by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency
rates.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not pledge any
assets (31 December 2020: Nil).

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2021, since we did not have any bank
borrowings, gearing ratio was not applicable to our Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRR D (&)

USE OF PROCEEDS rEXIERR

The final offer price for the Listing was HK$1.25 per share, LEWHSEEEEAER .25 MER L
and the actual net proceeds from the Listing were TWMBHEFELNAS12E8ES (LMK L
approximately HK$81.2 million (after deduction of the listing T X) - RAFERESHE - EHAEHE
expenses). As at the date of this Annual Report, the net JFEMFEABRNOT :

proceeds from the Listing were utilised as follows:

Amount Amount

utilised as at unutilised as at

Actual net the date of this the date of this
proceeds Annual Report Annual Report
BERFAE REFERE REEERS
NEFE RNHOHERALE HOAERSE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT TAT FTAET
Establish new research and TR RERERT
development centres in the AL
PRC and Hong Kong 39,600 (8,799) 30,801
Enhance the recognition and REEMERNRAE
qualification of our products KRB 17,300 (13,775) 3,625
Strengthen our sales capacity and EREHEENLEE
capture new sales opportunities MHEHS 21,100 (21,100) -
Purchase new information technology 8 B $i & A RIE@
hardware and software &L 2,500 (2,500) -
Working capital HEES 700 (700) -
81,200 (46,874) 34,326

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Company intends RAFERE D KA FRIEHEBREE
to continue to apply the net proceeds according to the [RETEIRFAEBRERS] —&MEMGE
purposes as set out in the section headed “Future Plans and  #& f& AT 15 B 48 o

Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus.

wrERaRAR /202168 2]



22

AL |
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USE OF PROCEEDS (Continued)

In view of the slowdown in growth of the global economy
and the outbreak of COVID-19, the Company has been
taking a more prudent approach in the utilisation of the
unutilised proceeds from the Listing. Furthermore, as a
result of the COVID-19 pandemic, countries or cities have
adopted quarantine measures and/or closure of borders
which led to restriction on travelling of the Company’s
management, hence leading to delay in implementation of
the Company's use of proceeds on establishing new
research and development centres in the PRC and Hong
Kong and enhancing the recognition and qualification of our
products. Subject to the weakening of the COVID-19
pandemic and the lifting of travelling and quarantine
restrictions, the Directors expect the use of unutilised
proceeds for and Hong Kong the above purposes will be
delayed by one year to the second half year of 2023 and the
second half year of 2022, respectively.

Going forward, the Directors will monitor the outbreak of
COVID-19 and its impact to the global economy to evaluate
the Group’s business objective and will change or modify
the plans according to the changing market condition to
create greater value for the shareholders of the Company.

All the unutilised balances have been placed in a licensed
bank in Hong Kong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEEN W& (F)

RESTRUCTURING AND SIGNIFICANT
INVESTMENTS

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, the
Group did not have any restructuring and significant
investments.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group had a total of 147 (31 December 2020: 147)
employees as at 31 December 2021. Total staff costs of the
Group (excluding the Directors’ and chief executive officer’'s
remuneration) for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
approximately HK$43.9 million (2020: HK$42.7 million). The
Group’s remuneration policies were in line with relevant
legislation, market conditions and the performance of our
employees.

DIVIDENDS

Having considered the financial and cash flow position of the
Company, as well as to reward the shareholders of the
Company for their continued support during the challenging
economic environment brought about by the COVID-19
pandemic and enhance investors’ confidence in the
Company, the Board recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK1.35 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2021 (the “Proposed Final Dividend”) to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Wednesday, 22 June 2022,
subject to the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting (the “AGM") to be held on Friday,
10 June 2022. It is expected that the Proposed Final
Dividend will be paid on or before Friday, 8 July 2022. The
Proposed Final Dividend shall be declared and distributed in
Hong Kong dollars.
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BEEEN W& (F)

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(A) for determining the entitlement to attend and

(B)

vote at the AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 2 June 2022 to Friday, 10 June 2022,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfers of
shares shall be effected. In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the AGM to be held on Friday,
10 June 2022, all transfers of shares, accompanied by
the relevant share certificates and transfer forms, must
be lodged for registration with the Hong Kong share
registrar of the Company, Union Registrars Limited at
Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two Chinachem Exchange
Square, 338 King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong no
later than 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 1 June 2022.

for determining the entitlement to the
Proposed Final Dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 20 June 2022 to Wednesday, 22 June
2022, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In
order to be eligible to receive the Proposed Final
Dividend, all transfers of shares, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and transfer forms, must be
lodged for registration with the Hong Kong share
registrar of the Company, Union Registrars Limited at
Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two Chinachem Exchange
Square, 338 King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong no
later than 4:00 p.m. on Friday, 17 June 2022.
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Directors and Senior Management

EERGREEE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching (# &%), aged 73, is the founder of
our Group. Mr. Yeung is the chairman of the Board and an
executive Director. Mr. Yeung was appointed as a Director
on 19 December 2017. He is in charge of the strategic
direction and development strategy of our Group. Mr. Yeung
is also a director of a number of our subsidiaries and the
member of the Company’s remuneration committee.

Mr. Yeung has over 20 years of experience in the
optoelectronics and general aviation industry. He obtained
his bachelor's degree in aeronautical engineering from
Nanjing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics (F 5
ZEMAKE) (formerly known as Nanjing College of
Aeronautics (F R ZEEET)) in June 1982. Mr. Yeung started
his career in the industry working as a designer of aircraft
machinery at the Aviation Department Aircraft Design
Institute* (AP EIfTZE T3 48A R/~ —— 9T AT, also known
as P9JIIEX#EP611FT) from February 1982 to May 1985 where
he was mainly responsible for design of aircraft machinery.
He joined Schmidt & Co., (Hong Kong) Ltd., a company
focusing on system integration, in May 1986 and was
promoted to the role of product manager in January 1993
responsible for business development. He then founded our
Group in April 1998 and has served as managing director of
our Group since then.

Mr. Yeung served as the general manager (B2 %) of
Infrared Analysis Society of China* (R EAIINDHTEE) in
1989. In 2004, he was appointed as the Economic
Development Consultant of Meijiang District, Meizhou* (&
N T R& BT SEEEER) by the Meizhou Meijian
Committee Meizhou Meijiang People’'s Government* (FF 2%
wMNTEIRZE MM THEIERARBN). He was
awarded the title of the 20th Anniversary of Meijiang District
Outstanding Contributor* (/TR ZE205BF = ERE) by
the Meizhou Meijian Committee Meizhou Meijiang People’s
Government* (R HGMTAHHIRZE S SHMNHIELIEREARK
fF) in 2008. Besides, Mr. Yeung was appointed as the
Honorary Vice-chairman of Fifth Executive Committee of
Guangzhou Land, Marine and Aero Modelling Association*
(BMNmEEERIESHHEFAEREERLEREF) in
2011.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Yeung has obtained various qualifications, including (i)
the Service and Maintenance Course for Ultralight Aircraft
Engines ROTAX 582-618-912 Diploma from ROTAX in
March 1993; (ii) the Thermovision 500 Operator Training
Course awarded by Agema Infrared Systems in October
1997; (iii) The American Society for Nondestructive Testing
Level Il Certificate Program in October 1999; and (iv) the
Thermal Imaging Fundamentals Certificate awarded by FLIR
Infrared Training Centre in June 2007. Mr. Yeung further
completed the Advanced CEO Program* ({®#42%(CEO)&
WAHMEL) at Tsinghua University in May 2010.

Mr. Yeung is the spouse of Ms. WONG Kwan Lik and the
father of Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai.

Ms. WONG Kwan Lik (E£#f 1), aged 65, is the chief executive
officer and an executive Director. Ms. Wong was appointed
as a Director on 19 December 2017. She joined our Group in
April 1998 and has since then taken an active part in the
sales and operation of our Group. Ms. Wong is also a
director of a number of our subsidiaries and the member of
the Company's nomination committee.

Ms. Wong has over 20 years of experience in the
optoelectronics and general aviation industry. From February
1982 to May 1986, Ms. Wong worked on aviation machinery
research at the Aviation Department Aircraft Design
Institute* (R EIfiTZE T 4B A RS ——H5LFT, also known
as PUJIIAX#&BG11F7). Ms. Wong has been serving as the sales
manager of Peiport Scientific Limited (“Peiport Scientific”)
and Peiport Scientific Aero Limited (“Peiport Aero”) from
April 1998 to June 2018 and from July 2018 to March 2019,
respectively. Since 1 April 2019, she has been promoted to
the managing director of Peiport Aero and is responsible for
planning and coordination of sales and operations of our
Group.

Ms. Wong obtained a bachelor’'s degree in aeronautical
engineering from Nanjing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics (R RATZEMAARE) (formerly known as Nanjing
College of Aeronautics (F8 =M ZEEF7)) in June 1982.

Ms. Wong is the spouse of Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching and the
mother of Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai (#%#&x28), aged 34, is an executive
Director. Mr. Yeung was appointed as a Director on 22
August 2018. Mr. Yeung joined our Group in February 2016
and has since then taken part in the management of
operation and supplier relationship of our Group.

Mr. Yeung has over 5 years of experience in the
optoelectronics and general aviation industry. From April
2013 till February 2014, Mr. Yeung worked as an associate
in the ICT hardware department under the Bell Professional
Management Program of Bell Canada, and was responsible
for building and maintaining the office’'s computers and
facilities. He was promoted to the position of technical
analyst in October 2013 and was responsible for managing
the daily work of the ICT hardware department. From
August 2014 to March 2015, Mr. Yeung joined Bell Business
Market of Bell Canada and worked as a technical analyst,
responsible for building, testing and deploying Cisco
telephone scripts for customers. Mr. Yeung has been
working as the marketing manager of Peiport Scientific and
Peiport Aero from February 2016 to June 2018 and from
July 2018 to March 2019, respectively. Since 1 April 2019,
he has been promoted to the business development director
of Peiport Aero and is mainly responsible for managing the
daily operations of our Group.

Mr. Yeung obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering from
McMaster University in Canada in June 2010, majoring in
computer engineering. He further obtained a master’s
degree in engineering from McMaster University in June
2013, majoring in electrical and computer engineering.

Mr. Yeung is the son of Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching and Ms.
WONG Kwan Lik.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. NIU Zhongjie (4$&&), aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 December 2018.
He is responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgment to our Board. Mr. Niu is also the chairman of the
Company’s nomination committee and the member of the
audit committee and remuneration committee.

Mr. Niu has worked with various financial institutions and
has extensive experience in equity capital markets. He
served as a director of Vision Finance Asset Management
Limited from February 2008 to January 2015. He has been
the director of Vision Finance International Company Limited
since September 2007 to present, and has also been the
responsible officer of the company to carry on type 1
(dealing in securities) and type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) regulated activities since November 2007.
Furthermore, he has been the responsible officer for type 4
(advising on securities) and type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities of Vision Finance Asset Management
Limited since December 2008 and July 2010, respectively.

He has served as an independent non-executive director of
Nanjing Sample Technology Company Ltd. (stock code:
1708) since 27 May 2019. Mr. Niu previously served as an
independent non-executive director of Gold-Finance
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1462), from 3 February 2016
to 15 May 2019.

Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen (##3K), aged 46, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 18 December
2018. She is responsible for supervising and providing
independent judgment to our Board. Ms. Yeung is also the
chairwoman of the Company’s audit committee and the
member of the nomination committee.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Yeung has over 20 years of experience in finance and
accounting. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Yeung worked in
various companies being responsible in the finance and
accounting aspects, among which she served as (i) a staff
accountant in the audit department of Ernst & Young in
Hong Kong from September 1997 to March 1999; (ii) an
accounting officer of China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd
from September 1999 to 2002; (iii) an accountant of Bruker
Optics Inc. from January 2006 to February 2007; (iv) the
accounting manager and financial controller of PCC Asia LCC
since April 2007 to June 2019 and from July 2019 to March
2020, respectively; and (v) the wealth management manager
of AIA Company Limited since September 2020.

Ms. Yeung was awarded the Bachelor of Arts (Hons) Degree
in Accountancy by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
1997. Ms. Yeung was admitted in January 2007 as a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"). She is currently a Certified Public
Accountant registered with the HKICPA. She has been a
member of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
since May 2006.

Mr. HOU Min ({®3&), aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 December 2018.
He responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgment to our Board. Mr. Hou is also the chairman of the
company’s remuneration committee and the member of the
audit committee.

Mr. Hou has over 20 years of experience in the aviation
industry. From 1980 to 1994, Mr. Hou served in the PRC
military. Mr. Hou served as an officer at the Anti-Smuggling
Bureau of the Beijing Customs Office between September
1994 and March 2002. From 2002 to 2004, Mr. Hou was
employed by Sino Television Co. Ltd (11 Bt BR A7) as
a pilot for aerial photography. From May 2012 to December
2013, Mr. Hou worked at Anhui Dinghong General Aviation
Company Limited* (ZRIBZRBAMEBR AR (previously
known as the Anhui Dinghong General Aviation Company
Limited* (Z &R Z=:@AMZEHR R A F]), with his last position
being the general manager responsible for daily operations.
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From February 2015 to August 2017, Mr. Hou was the
general manager of Hunan Sunward General Aviation
Company Limited* (#F 1L A ZE N BM AR A F)) responsible
for the daily operations of the company. From December
2017 to the present, Mr. Hou has been the legal
representative and general manager of Guizhou Huang Ping
Qie Lan General Aviation Company Limited* (&M =¥ H#
BAMZEAR AR responsible for the overall operation and
management.

Mr. Hou completed the fighter pilot diploma at the PRC
People's Liberation Army Air Force Fourth Aviation School*
(FERARBHMEZEEZOMZEER) in December 1982. He
further obtained a bachelor’s degree in military science from
the Army Staff College* (FEEZ2RE ) in the PRC in July
1994,

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. SZE So Fan (£ #tl), aged 52, is the deputy chief
executive officer of our Group. Ms. Sze joined our Group in
May 1999 and is responsible for overall administration and
human resources management of our Group.

Ms. Sze has over 20 years of experience in the marketing
field. Between March 1998 to April 1999, Ms. Sze worked
as a marketing executive in TFH Technology Co., Ltd., a
company which engages in the trading of engineering
equipment and she was mainly responsible for assisting the
sales and marketing manager for formulation and
implementation of sales and marketing strategy.

Ms. Sze graduated from Minzu University of China (1 5R R i&
) in June 1991 with a bachelor’s degree in physics.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. KWAN Leung Yu (B85 F), aged 45, is the technology
director of our Group and is responsible for the overall
technical products and supplier relationship management of
our Group. Mr. Kwan has over 20 years of experience in the
engineering field. Mr. Kwan joined our Group in September
1999 as a sales engineer and was promoted to assistant
general manager in April 2004 where he was mainly
responsible for design, tailoring and preparation of technical
proposals of thermal imaging products and services and self-
stabilised imaging related products and services for our
customers. Mr. Kwan obtained his bachelor’s degree in
engineering from The University of Hong Kong in December
1998.

Mr. XIA Xiaoming (E#8f), aged 62, is the chief engineer
of our Group. Mr. Xia joined our Group in 2002 and is
responsible for research and development of the products of
our Group. Mr. Xia has over 20 years of experience in the
optoelectronics and general aviation industry. From January
1989 to March 1993, Mr. Xia worked as a teacher in Nanjing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautics (F =M ZE AR
E) (formerly known as Nanjing University of Aeronautics (&
FMZE AE)). From 1993 to 1995, Mr. Xia worked as
technical manager in Shenzhen Transportation Machinery
and Electronics Company* (ZFIIIZE AR E F /2 7)) and was
responsible for research and development of mechanical
products.

Mr. Xia obtained a master’'s degree in engineering, and
doctor's degree in engineering, from Nanjing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics (Fd RMZEMAARE) (formerly
known as Nanjing University of Aeronautics (B RfinZe AE)
in December 1984 and May 1989, respectively. He further
obtained a master’s degree in business administration from
Duquesne University in the United States in December
1997.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Ms. LEUNG Chin Ching (R &#2), aged 35, is the company
secretary and financial controller of our Group. Ms. Leung
joined our Group in December 2017 and is primarily
responsible for the secretarial, compliance work and overall
financial and accounting operations of our Group.

Ms. Leung has over 12 years of experience in finance and
accounting. She obtained the bachelor degree of business
administration in accountancy from the City University of
Hong Kong in July 2009. She is admitted as a certified public
accountant of the HKICPA in July 2013.

Note: If there is any inconsistency between the official Chinese name of the PRC
laws or regulations or the PRC Government authorities or the PRC entities and
their English translation, the Chinese version shall prevail. English translations
of official Chinese names are for identification purposes only and are marked
with “*".
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Corporate Governance Report

TERERBE

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company (the “Corporate Governance Report”)
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving high corporate
governance standards. The Board believes that high
corporate governance standards are essential in providing a
framework for the Group to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

Since the Listing Date, the Company has adopted the
principles and the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code") as previously set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) during the year on the Stock Exchange.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with
all the applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code
throughout year ended 31 December 2021.

On 1 January 2022, the amendments to the Corporate
Governance Code (the “New CG Code”) came into effect
and the requirements under the New CG code will apply to
corporate governance reports for financial year commencing
on or after 1 January 2022. The Board will continue to
review and enhance its corporate governance practice of the
Company to ensure compliance with the New CG Code and
align with the latest developments.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “"Model
Code") as set forth in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own securities dealing code to regulate all dealings by
Directors in the securities of the Company and other matters
covered by the Model Code.

Specific enquiry has been made to all Directors and they
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year under review.
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THE BOARD

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and Senior
Management

The Board is the primary decision-making body of the
Company and is responsible for overseeing the Group's
businesses, strategic decisions and performance and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board
makes decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective functioning.

The Group's senior management is responsible for the day-
to-day management of the Group’s businesses and is
responsible for overseeing the general operation, business
development, finance and marketing.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises six members, consisting of
three executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the
date of this Corporate Governance Report, the composition
of the Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching (Chairman)

Ms. WONG Kwan Lik (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. NIU Zhongjie

Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen
Mr. HOU Min
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BOARD COMPOSITION (Continued)

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in
the section headed "Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 25 to 32 of this Annual Report. The relationships
between the members of the Board are also disclosed under
the same section.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching (“Mr. YEUNG"), being the chairman
of the Board (the “Chairman”), provides leadership and is
responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of
the Board. Ms. WONG Kwan Lik (“Ms. WONG"), being the
chief executive officer, focuses on the Company’s business
development and the daily management and operations. The
segregation of roles of the Chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Company aligns with the requirement pursuant
to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF THE
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the CG Code, it stipulates that non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election and all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
should be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment. The Company has
complied with the requirements of the CG Code that all
Directors are appointed for a term of three years. Such
appointment may be terminated earlier by either party giving
to the other not less than three months’ notice in writing.

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association (the
“Articles of Association”), at each AGM one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual
general meeting at least one every three years. Accordingly,
Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching and Ms. WONG Kwan Lik will retire
by rotation at the forthcoming AGM of the Company and,
being eligible, offers themselves for re-election.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing more
than one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a written annual confirmation in
respect of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed
a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term
of three years unless terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by each independent non-
executive Director concerned or our Company expiring at
the end of the initial term or at any time thereafter.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely,
the audit committee (the "Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), to oversee particular aspects of the
Company'’s affairs. All Board committees are provided
sufficient resources to perform its duties and, if necessary,
to seek independent professional advice at the expense of
the Company to fulfill their responsibilities. They are also
required to report to the Board after each meeting on their
decisions or recommendations.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TRERHE (F)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since 18
December 2018 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Rule 3.22 of the Listing Rules.
Currently, the Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. NIU
Zhongjie, Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen and Mr. HOU Min. Ms.
YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen is the chairwoman of the Audit
Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) make
recommendations to our Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of external auditors; (ii) review
the financial statements; (iii) provide material advice in
respect of our financial reporting process; (iv) oversee our
internal control and risk management systems and audit
process; and (v) provide advice and comment to our Board
on matters related to corporate governance.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held
four meetings and has performed the following works:

— recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditor and the remuneration;

— considered and reviewed the scope of audit work and
monitored its independence;

— reviewed the unaudited accounts, interim results for
the six months ended 30 June 2021 and annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2020;

— reviewed the continuing connected transactions of the
Group; and

— reviewed the effectiveness of the financial reporting
system, internal control and risk management systems
and internal audit function of the Group.

In addition, according to our terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, the Audit Committee also held a meeting with
our external auditor in the absence of the management to
discuss matters relating to the auditor’'s remuneration and
scope of audit works during the year under review.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established since
18 December 2018 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Rule 3.26 of the Listing Rules.
Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. HOU Min
and Mr. NIU Zhongjie and one executive Director, namely
Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching. Mr. HOU Min is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to (i)
review and make recommendations to our Board on the
terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to Directors and senior management
of the Company; (i) assessing performance of Directors; and
(i) approving the terms of the Directors’ service contracts.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
held one meeting and has performed the following works:

reviewed the remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and senior management of the Company and
made recommendations to the Board on their specific
packages; and

reviewed the fees of the independent non-executive
Directors and make recommendations to the Board.

Details of the remuneration payable to each Director of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out
in note 8 to the financial statements.

Pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2021 was set out below:
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TRERHE (F)

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established since 18
December 2018 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. Currently, the Nomination Committee
comprises two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. NIU Zhongjie and Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen and one
executive Director, namely Ms. WONG Kwan Lik. Mr. NIU
Zhongjie is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i)
review the structure, size and composition of our Board; (ii)
identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members; (iii) assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and (iv) review and make
recommendations to the Board on appointment or
reappointment of directors and the management of the
Board succession.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting and has performed the following works:

— reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board
and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors;

— set up the nomination policy of the Company (the
“Nomination Policy”) and reviewed its implementation;

— identified individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

— assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and

— reviewed the Board diversity policy of the Company (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) and its implementation.

EEZRES(H)
REZEE

ARBEA=—T-N\FE+ A+ /\BEKIIE
FEE®  WERETRAME T OAENE
ETAIGIEEEBELE - BAT RREEE
BREMBBIULIIFNTESR  FEEEERG
Bt R—RBWTES BEBFhxL-
FEERERRRREENIE -

RAZEENIZERER(IEHEFTSHE
BRRNAK  (IMEEERKAEFEENEN
EEAE (i) B IFRITEENELIE
RVBEREREZEEXEHZETEEREERE
EFRRETANERSRMHERRS -

REBFE  REZEeRT ez NERE
ITAT I :

— ROEFERE AERKEZTL

VYHEELZEAENZERESTEE
FREFSRNER

— RIUARANREBE(REBBE]) R
W HEWE

— VERERKAEFTEREMEEA
& WHGERBREEETHAESBU
MERSRDESR

— FHEBMIEMITESRNBUE R

— BEARFAMNEZTEXNEZ TERER
([EZEXBEZTIEEEK]) REEE -

HEERERAR /2021 F3f

39



40

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHRE (F)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various aspects set out
in the Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, industry
experience, technical and professional skills and/or
qualifications, knowledge, length of services and time to be
devoted as a director.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates to serve as a
director of the Company, the Nomination Committee would
consider the above criteria necessary to complement the
corporate strategy and achieve board diversity, where
appropriate, before making recommendations to the Board.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to
implement board diversity and review such objectives from
time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain
the progress made towards achieving those objectives. The
Nomination Committee shall review and monitor the
effectiveness of the board diversity of the Board.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board's
composition under diversified perspectives was summarised
as follows:
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TRERHE (F)

NOMINATION POLICY

The Group adopted the Nomination Policy on 22 February
2019. A summary of this policy is disclosed as below.

Objectives

The Nomination Committee assists the Board in making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors. This policy
provides the key selection criteria and principles of the
Nomination Committee in making any such
recommendations.

Selection Criteria

When making recommendations regarding the appointment
of any proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment of
any existing member(s) of the Board, the Nomination
Committee shall consider a variety of factors including
without limitation the following in assessing the suitability of
the proposed candidate:

(1) Reputation for integrity;

(2)  Accomplishment, experience and reputation in the
business and other relevant sectors relate to the
Company and/or its subsidiaries;

(3) Commitment in respect of sufficient time and attention
to the Company's business;

(4) Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural/educational and professional
background, skills, knowledge and experience;

(5)  The ability to assist and support management and
make significant contributions to the Company’s
success;

(6) Compliance with the criteria of independence as
prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the
appointment of an independent non-executive Director,
and
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NOMINATION POLICY (Continued)
Selection Criteria (Continued)

(7)  Any other relevant factors as may be determined by
the Nomination Committee or the Board from time to
time.

The appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or
re-appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board shall
be made in accordance with the Articles of Association and
other applicable rules and regulations.

Nomination Procedures

In general, the Board shall have the ultimate responsibility
for all matters relating to the selection, appointment and re-
appointment of Directors.

(1) The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall
convene a meeting and invite nominations of
candidates from Board members (if any), for
consideration by the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee may also nominate candidates
for its consideration.

(2) In the context of appointment of any proposed
candidate to the Board, the Nomination Committee
shall undertake adequate due diligence in respect of
such individual and make recommendations for the
Board's consideration and approval.

(8) In the context of re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation, for the proposed
candidates to stand for re-election at a general meeting.

Review and monitoring of the Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the
Nomination Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss
any revisions that may be required and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TRERHE (F)

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
on 22 February 2019. A summary of this policy is disclosed
as below.

The Group is committed to maintaining sufficient resources
and flexibility to meet the Group’s financial and operational
requirements. At the same time, the Company continually
seeks ways to enhance shareholders’ value to ensure
sustainable long-term yields for shareholders.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company gives priority to
distributing dividend in cash and shares its profits with its
shareholders. The dividend payout ratio shall be determined
or recommended, as appropriate, by the Board at its
absolute discretion after taking into account the Group's
financial results, future prospects and other factors, and
subject to:

(1) the Articles of Association;

(2) the applicable restrictions and requirements under the
laws of the Cayman Islands;

(3) any banking or other funding covenants by which the
Company is bound from time to time;

(4) the investment and operating requirements of the
Group; and

(5) any other factors that have material impact on the
Company.

The Board may consider distributing special dividend to all
shareholders, and the amount of which shall be determined
and approved by the Board at its absolute discretion.

Under the Cayman Islands Companies Act and the Articles
of Association of the Company, all of our shareholders have
equal entitlement to dividends and distributions. The Board
shall have the right to review the Dividend Policy from time
to time as it deems fit according to the financial and
business development requirements of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set
out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board would review the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management, the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the code
of conduct applicable to employees and Directors, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD MEETINGS

Code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code stipulates that Board
meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals with active participation of
the majority of the Directors, either in person or through
electronic means of communications.

Notice of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors
at least 14 days in advance while reasonable notice is given
for other Board meetings. Agenda and accompanying board
papers are sent, in full, to all Directors at least 3 days before
the intended date of the regular Board meetings and Board
committees meetings to enable all Directors to make
informed decisions. Minutes of regular Board meetings and
Board committees meetings are drafted by the company
secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”) in
sufficient detail the matters considered and decisions
reached. Draft and final versions of minutes of the meetings
are sent to all Board members and Board committee
members for their comment and records, within a
reasonable time after the meetings. Full minutes are kept by
the Company Secretary and open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.
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BOARD MEETINGS (Continued) E=aed (@

The individual attendance record of each Director at the JEEREBEE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HLHF
meetings of the Board and the Board Committees, and the EAEEEREELZESHLIRTEAFAE
AGM during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out  EERIE FEEEREFIA0T ¢

below:
Number of meetings attended/held
HE/ BIEERRE
Audit Remuneration  Nomination

Name of Directors B Board  Committee  Committee  Committee AGM

EZg ENZEE FMEEE REZEE REATAS
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching BRELE 4/4 - 22 - N
Ms. WONG Kwan Lik TENL 44 - - 212 n
Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai BEREE 4/4 - _ _ 1N
Independent Non-Executive %V ##H{TEE

Directors

Mr. NIU Zhongjie GhEEEE 4l4 4l4 2/2 2/2 n
Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen BExTT 4/4 4/4 - 202 171
Mr. HOU Min RREE 4/4 4/4 202 - 1

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the chairman has #HEZE-_T-_—F+_A=+—HIFE  £F
also met once with all independent non-executive Directors B HEEE TN TESTHMEERE T
without the presence of other Directors, to discuss various 27— X @#%  UiwmSEFEARFLESE
matters in respect of corporate governance of the Company. JAREE o

In addition, according to the terms of reference of Audit Itol - IBRIEBEZZESNBESE - NEIEF
Committee, the members of the Audit Committee have met EN - BEZEZ 8K EC BZYMEERER
with the auditors in the absence of the management to & NE1T€% Uil BEEXBRAMEZT
discuss matters relating to the audit fees and scope of audit {E#IEMNEE -

works during the year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Directors keep abreast of the responsibilities as a Director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

In accordance with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. All Directors are encouraged to
attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, all Directors, namely
Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching, Ms. WONG Kwan Lik, Mr. YEUNG
Chun Tai, Mr. NIU Zhongjie, Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen and
Mr. HOU Min have confirmed that they had complied with
code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code and details are set out
below:
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Types of Trainings

Directors = (See Remarks)
EIN R
(RE#)

Executive Directors PITEE

Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching Hfmia et A B

Ms. WONG Kwan Lik FREH L A, B

Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai (e it A B

Independent Non-Executive BYFHTEE

Directors

Mr. NIU Zhongjie BB A A B

Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen ol A B

Mr. HOU Min IR A A B

Remarks: LR -

A: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums A HEHSE N eEmk TwmE

B: reading journals, updates, articles and/or materials, etc. B: WEEBT - - XERS IS
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TEERHRE ()

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and other
financial disclosures required in accordance with the
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December
2021, the Directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, the accounts is prepared on a going concern
basis and they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

A statement by the auditor about their reporting
responsibilities for the financial statements is included in the
"Independent Auditor’'s Report” on pages 73 to 80 of this
Annual Report.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY AND
REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
appointed Ernst & Young as the external auditor. Details of
the fees paid or payable in respect of the audit and non-audit
services provided by Ernst & Young for the year ended 31
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December 2021 are set out in the table below: FERERANIERNTE
Fee paid/
Services Rendered 2R MRS payable
gt/
EAEA
HK$'000
FET
Audit services: FrthRT -
— Annual audit and related services — FEE MEBRE 1,300
Non-audit services: TR -
— Agreed-upon procedures with respect to — BT HRENHBTERER
interim report and other professional K E A E R
services 280
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has undertaken the overall responsibility for
overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems on an on-going basis and reviewing their
effectiveness at least annually in order to safeguard the
interests of the shareholders and the assets of the Group.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives and
ensuring that the Group has established and maintained
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. The systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee to review
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
controls of the Group. Based on its review, the Audit
Committee advises the Board on the effectiveness of the
Group’'s risk management and internal control systems,
including the identification and monitoring of the risks, the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting functions. The management has also
been delegated to design, implement and maintain the
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group.

Risk management is curial to promote good corporate
governance. Our risk management process includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk control and review. The
management is entrusted with duties to identify, evaluate,
respond, monitor and communicate risks to the head of the
respective business units or department to enforce the
remediation. Risks are assessed by our management and
reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board based on (i)
the probability that the risk will occur; and (i) the severity of
the impact on the Group. According to the likelihood of
occurrence and the impact of the risk, our Group implement
the risk management strategies by avoiding the risk, sharing
or transferring the risk, mitigating the risk, and accepting the
risk.
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TRERHE (F)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (Continued)

To further strengthen the risk management and internal
control of the Group, the Company appointed external
advisers to undertake the internal audit function and perform
an annual review of the internal control systems of the
Group. The external advisers evaluate the Group's risk
management and internal control systems by reviewing the
material controls, including financial, operation and
compliance. The rotation basis would be applied to
operations with similar risk associated so as to enhance the
efficiency and effectiveness of the internal audit function.
Review results and the recommendations in the form of
written report are submitted to the Audit Committee for
discussion and review. Follow up actions will be taken up by
the management of the Group to ensure all significant
control activities are properly in place within the Group and
findings previously identified have been properly resolved.

The Company has conducted annual review on the
effectiveness and efficiency of the Groups risk management
and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2021 and the management has confirmed that
there is no significant deficiency and weakness on the
internal control system has been identified by the external
advisers. During the year under review, both the Board and
the Audit Committee satisfied and confirmed that the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems were
effective and adequate.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for handling
the dissemination of inside information, the Group has
adopted a policy on the disclosure of inside information (the
“Inside Information Policy”) in order to comply with the
Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFO") and the Listing
Rules. According to the Inside information Policy, the
Company has taken appropriate measures to identify inside
information and preserve its confidentiality until proper
dissemination via the electronic publication system operated
by the Stock Exchange. Senior management of the Group
must take all reasonable measures to ensure that proper
safeguards exist to prevent the leakage of inside information
of the Company from time to time. They must also promptly
bring any possible leakage or divulgence of inside
information to the attention of the Board accordingly for
taking the appropriate action promptly.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Ms. LEUNG Chin Ching, who is
also the financial controller of the Group, is a full-time
employee of the Company. Her biography is set out on page
32 of this Annual Report in the section of “Directors and
Senior Management”.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Ms. LEUNG Chin
Ching has confirmed that she has complied with all the
qualifications and training requirements as required under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of Extraordinary General Meetings (the
“EGM”) by the Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, the
Board may whenever it thinks fit call EGM. EGM shall also
be convened on the requisition of any one or more members
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary of the Company, to require an
EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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TRERHE (F)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)
Putting forward Proposals at a General Meeting

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the principal place of business
in Hong Kong of the Company at Unit 316, 3/F., Lakeside T,
Phase Two, Hong Kong Science Park, Pak Shek Kok, New
Territories, Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding
information of the shareholder, his/her contact details and
the proposal he/she intends to put forward at general
meeting regarding any specified transaction/business and its
supporting documents.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put forward enquiries to the
Board at general meeting or send written enquiries to the
Company for the attention of the Company Secretary at the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit
316, 3/F., Lakeside 1, Phase Two, Hong Kong Science Park,
Pak Shek Kok, New Territories, Hong Kong.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company has established a shareholders’
communication policy on 18 December 2018. Such policy is
monitored and reviewed by the Board on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness. The Company considers that
effective communication with shareholders is essential for
enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of
the Group’s business performance and strategies. The
Company endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through AGMs and other
general meetings. At the forthcoming AGM, Directors (or
their delegates as appropriate) will be available to meet
shareholders and answer their enquiries.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS RELATIONS (Continued)

To promote effective communication, the Company
maintains a website at “www.peiport.com”. Through its
website, the Company provides shareholders with corporate
information, corporate governance practice, interim and
annual reports, announcements, circulars and etc. The
Company will also update the website information from time
to time to inform the shareholders and investors of the
latest development of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there is no significant change
in the Company’s constitution documents. An up to date
version of the Articles of Association is available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Board of Directors is pleased to present their report
together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries were principally engaged in the provision of (i)
thermal imaging products and services; (ii) self-stabilised
imaging products and services; and (iii) general aviation
products and services. An analysis of the principal activities
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 is
set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this Annual Report.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, an indication of likely future developments
in the Group's businesses and other relevant information,
can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and the “"Management Discussion and Analysis”
set out on pages 5 to 8 and pages 9 to 24 of this Annual
Report, respectively. Such discussion forms part of this
"Report of the Directors”.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policies
and performance, compliance with relevant laws and
regulations and the key relationships with the Company's
key stakeholders which have a significant impact on the
Group are set out in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report”.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability
of the environment and is committed to becoming an
environmentally friendly corporation. Details of our
environmental, social and governance policies and
performance during the year ended 31 December 2021 shall
be disclosed in a standalone "“Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” to published within five months after
the end of the financial year on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the Group's financial position as at 31 December 2021
are set out in the financial statements on pages 81 to 83.
The Board are pleased recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK1.35 cents (2020: HK1.35 cents) per share for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Wednesday, 22 June 2022, subject to the
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM to be held
on Friday, 10 June 2022. It is expected that the Proposed
Final Dividend will be paid on or before Friday, 8 July 2022.
The Proposed Final Dividend shall be declared and
distributed in Hong Kong dollars.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the audited results and the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements, is set out on page 2 of this Annual
Report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note
1 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company

for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 24
to the financial statements.

DEBENTURE ISSUED

The Group did not issue any debenture during the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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ESTHE (E)

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in “Share Option Scheme” as set out in
this section, no equity-linked agreements were entered into
by the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December
2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note
34 to the financial statements and the consolidated
statements of changes in equity. The distributable reserve
of the Company as at 31 December 2021 was
HK$68,721,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, sales to the
Group's five largest customers accounted for 34.7% of the
total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted t0 9.6%.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, purchases from
the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 68.7% of
the total purchases for the year and purchase from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to 45.4%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers during
the year ended 31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this Annual Report
are:

Executive Directors

Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching (Chairman)
Ms. WONG Kwan Lik (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. NIU Zhongjie
Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen
Mr. HOU Min

The Company has received written annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee has duly reviewed the independence
of each of these directors. The Company considered that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Group are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” on pages 25 to 32 of
this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service agreement
with our Company for a term of three years and are subject
to termination in accordance with their respective terms.
The term of the service contracts may be renewed in
accordance with the Articles of Association and the
applicable rules of the Listing Rules.

Save as discussed above, none of the Directors proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract with the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries,
which is not terminable by employing company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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ESTHE (E)

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and chief
executive officer and the five highest paid employees of the
Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements of this Annual Report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and subject to the
applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur or sustain in or about the execution of their duty
in their offices. The Company has maintained appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance to provide
appropriate coverage for the Directors and other officers of
the Group throughout the year and are currently in force.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. YEUNG, Ms. WONG and Peiport Alpha Ltd. (“Peiport
Alpha"), each being the controlling shareholder (as defined
under the Listing Rules) of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholder(s)”) , have entered into a deed of non-
competition dated 18 December 2018 (in favour of the
Company (the “Deed of Non-Competition”). Details of the
Deed of Non-Competition was set out in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of the
Prospectus. The Company has received confirmations from
Mr. YEUNG, Ms. WONG and Peiport Alpha of their
compliance with the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition.
Mr. YEUNG, Ms. WONG and Peiport Alpha declared that
they have fully complied with the Deed of Non-Competition
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the confirmations from the Controlling
Shareholders and confirmed that up to the date of this
Annual Report, all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-
Competition have been complied with by Mr. YEUNG, Ms.
WONG and Peiport Alpha.
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ESTHE (E)

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, our executive
Director, Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai (“Mr. CT YEUNG") held 70%
of the issued share capital of Yoom System Inc. (“Yoom”)
which is principally engaged in the provision of thermal
imaging and related products and services (“Products”) in
Canada and the United States. Yoom has also entered into
an agreement with Peiport Aero pursuant to which Yoom
will purchase Products from Peiport Aero at cost plus basis
and such purchases shall not exceed 5% of the percentage
ratios (other than profits ratio) of the Company and
HK$3,000,000 per year. During the year ended 31 December
2021, Yoom has not made any purchases from the Group.

In relation to his shareholding interests in Yoom, Mr. CT
YEUNG has provided an undertaking to the Company (the
“CT YEUNG Undertaking”) that Yoom will (i) not operate its
business outside of Canada and the United States; (ii) in the
event that Mr. CT YEUNG receives any business opportunity
that relates to the business carried on by the Group from
time to time and such business is outside Canada and the
United States, Mr. CT YEUNG or Yoom will refer such
business opportunity to the Group; and (iii) in the event the
Group decides to expand its business of sales of Products to
the Canada and the United States, the Company will have
the discretion on (a) Yoom or Mr. CT YEUNG to cease
purchase of any Products from the Group for its sale in
Canada and the United States; and (b) Mr. CT YEUNG wvill
transfer his shareholding in Yoom to the Group.

Based on the CT YEUNG Undertaking, Mr. CT YEUNG has
also provided to the Company a written confirmation on
annual basis in respect of his compliance of the terms of the
CT YEUNG Undertaking. The independent non-executive
Directors of the Company have also reviewed such
confirmation and confirmed that up to the date of this
Annual Report, all the undertakings under the CT YEUNG
Undertaking have been complied by Mr. CT YEUNG.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (E)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at the date of this Annual Report, the following Directors
and chief executive of the Company had or were deemed to
have interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code:

EERTRARRKRSG  HEROR
EEEPNESERAR

RAFRERERH - TIARRRESERITHAE
BRARASEEAREEE(ERELIEF K
HAEARBISE XV E#B) 2 B dn ~ MRt KB E
PHEB IR SES () RIEFE S MG GRIE
XVEBE 7 M8 BPAKE AR R B At 2 4
DIAR (BRBEEFREEZ LB GO 2%
EREWREFHIRREBE IR NAR) K
(i) IR I5 78 7 K B G 16151 35 352 {5 7R FC 8RN A% 16k
PIFrte 2 Bt 2 e SOXR ¢ (i) RIBF
ETRAEMEARNRR] LB Rz gk R

Ordinary Shares of the Company: BERAZEBRRG
Number of Approximate

Capacity/ ordinary shares and percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest class of securities shareholding (%)
EEsR B, EEHE ERRNEE RFEHER BEREANE DL (%)
Mr. YEUNG® Interest of a controlled 300,000,000 Shares (L)™ 75%@

corporation
HEE® SAEHEEER 300,000,000 A% &7 (L)
Ms. WONG® Interest of spouse 300,000,000 Shares (L) 75%?
Fxzt® [ 300,000,000 A% %17 (L)
Notes: B5E -
1. The letter “L" denotes to the person with long position in the shares of the 1. FE L EZALTREARRRS ((B’H ) HFE -
Company (the “Share(s)").

2. The calculation is based on the total number of 400,000,000 Shares in issue 2. ER R EREE TAE B 81T 42%0400,000,000 %

after completion of the global offering.

3. Our Company is owned as to approximately 75% by Peiport Alpha and Peiport
Alpha is owned as to 50% and 30% by Mr. YEUNG and Ms. WONG,
respectively. Ms. WONG is the spouse of Mr. YEUNG and therefore each of
Ms. WONG and Mr. YEUNG is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held
by Peiport Alpha pursuant to the SFO. Mr. YEUNG, Ms. WONG and Peiport
Alpha together are a group of Controlling Shareholders of our Company.

-

3. ARAHRFMBEERD75%  MRFMBED
RIEREGEERERLTHA 0% K 30% #m - FR L
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ESTHE (E)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (Continued)

Ordinary Shares of an Associated Corporation —
Peiport Alpha:

EERTRARRKRSG  AEROR
EEETPNESZR AR (&)

MHEEE — REMBEEZZEBRKRMD

Number of Approximate

Capacity/ ordinary shares and percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest class of securities shareholding (%)
EEpns 5 RRMtE EBERNBERIZFER BFREBAE D (%)
Mr. YEUNG® Beneficiary owner 8 Shares (L) 80%"
B E® EnAA 8t (L)
Ms. WONG® Interest of spouse 8 Shares (L) 80%?
Txrte fe B 8ARAR 15 (L)
Mr. CT YEUNG Beneficiary owner 2 Shares (L)© 20%"
BIRER A EnHAA 2 Bt (L)
Notes: B E
1. The letter “L" denotes to the person with long position in the shares. 1. FRIL] BZATREOOIEE
2. The calculation is based on the total number of 10 shares of Peiport Alpha in 2. EHRFE =M EEAD BTN AEI0RETHE -

issue.

3. Mr. YEUNG and Ms. WONG held 5 shares and 3 shares of Peiport Alpha,
respectively. Since Ms. WONG is the spouse of Mr. YEUNG, pursuant to the
SFO, they are deemed to be interested in the entire issued share capital of
Peiport Alpha and the Shares held by Peiport Alpha.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this Annual
Report, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which he was taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (E)

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’
and chief executive's interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures” in this section, at no
time during the year ended 31 December 2021 were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or
underlying shares in, or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under
18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights
in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the "Connected Transactions” as set
out in this section and the related party transactions
disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements of this
Annual Report, no Directors had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors nor their respective associates had an interest in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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ESTHE (E)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share
Option Scheme”) has been conditionally adopted on 18
December 2018.

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
any person belonging to any of the following classes of
participants (the "Eligible Participants”), to take up options
to subscribe for the shares:

(1)

any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of our Company or any of its subsidiaries;

any directors (including executive, non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) of
our Company or any of its subsidiaries;

any advisers (professional or otherwise), consultants,
suppliers, customers and agents to our Company or
any of its subsidiaries; and

related entities who, in the sole opinion of the Board,
will contribute or have contributed to our Company or
any of its subsidiaries.

The Share Option Scheme became effective on the Listing
Date and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme (i.e. 17 December 2028).
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (E)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme is 40,000,000 shares, representing
10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the Listing
Date and as at the date of this Annual Report. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options granted to
each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme
(including both exercised and outstanding options) within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue. Any grant or further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting. A grant of share options
under the Share Option Scheme to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, is subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive Directors (excluding any
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee of
the option). In addition, any grant of share options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, or to any of their associates, which
would result in the shares issued and to be issued, upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding), to
such person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of the grant in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue and with an aggregate value (based on
the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.
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ESTHE (E)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted on or
before the relevant acceptance date upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion, save that such a
period shall not be more than 10 years from the date of offer
of the share options and subject to the provisions for early
termination as set out in the Share Option Scheme. There is
no minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised. The exercise price of the share options
shall be not less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer
of the share options, which must be a date on which the
Stock Exchange is open for business of dealing in securities;
(ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
before the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company's share as at the date of offer. The Share Option
Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is established to
recognise and acknowledge the contributions Eligible
Participants had or may have made to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme will provide Eligible Participants
an opportunity to have a personal stake in our Company with
the view to achieving the following objectives: (i) motivate
Eligible Participants to optimise their performance efficiency
for the benefit of the Group; and (ii) attract and retain or
otherwise maintain on-going business relationship with
Eligible Participants whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group.

No options had been granted or agreed to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme during the year and up to the date
of this Annual Report. The Company did not have any
outstanding share options, warrants and convertible
instruments into shares as at 31 December 2021 and up to
the date of this Annual Report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As of the date of this Annual Report, so far as was known to
any Director, or chief executive of our Company, the
following persons (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to have,
interests and/or short positions in the Shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to our Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRRAR®G - HERG R EER
RS

RAFEHREAY  BARBESHITHRAEE
PR AN AL (RRREERITHRARIRIN)
RARBRAD -~ ARRERR (D N B4R A S
BREBRBEES KPR GRIIEXVEE 2R3
DEBRAARNE KB FR R R R, SOK
B AR RIREE S NS 5P 336 15R T
BEELMASNERE AR

Number of Approximate

Name of Capacity/ ordinary shares and percentage of
Shareholder Nature of interest class of securities shareholding (%)

EBERNEE
BREEEB B Rty RFEZER BFREBAE DL (%)
Peiport Alpha® Beneficial owner 300,000,000 Shares (L)™ 75%%?
B A © EnEAA 300,000,000 A& 47 (L)
Mr. YEUNG® Interest in a controlled 300,000,000 Shares (L) 75%?

corporation

BRED Rt EE kR 300,000,000 A& A& 12 (L)@
Ms. WONG® Interest of spouse 300,000,000 Shares (L)™ 75%%?
Frt® feiB s 300,000,000 & B 47 (L)
Notes: T -
1. The letter “L" denotes to the entity’s with long position in the securities. 1. FEILI EZEBRELFNGTE -
2. The calculation is based on the total number of 400,000,000 Shares in issue 2. ERE BRI E ST 18 B 31719 48 £400,000,000 f%

after completion of the global offering.

3. Our Company is owned as to approximately 75% by Peiport Alpha and Peiport
Alpha is owned as to 50% and 30% by Mr. YEUNG and Ms. WONG,
respectively. Ms. WONG is the spouse of Mr. YEUNG and therefore each of
Ms. WONG and Mr. YEUNG is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held
by Peiport Alpha pursuant to the SFO. Mr. YEUNG, Ms. WONG and Peiport
Alpha together are a group of Controlling Shareholders of our Company.

-
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ESTHE (E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this Annual
Report, none of the substantial or significant shareholders or
other persons, other than the Directors and chief executive
of the Company whose interests are set out in the paragraph
headed “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures” in
this section, had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than the employment contracts,
concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
was entered into or existed during the year ended 31
December 2021.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions entered into by the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 are disclosed in note 29 to
the financial statements. These transactions constituted
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and were conducted in
accordance with terms as agreed between us and the
respective related parties. Our Directors confirm that all
related party transactions during the year ended 31
December 2021 were conducted on normal commercial
terms that were reasonable and in the interest of our Group
as a whole. Save as disclosed in below sections of this
Annual Report, there were no other connected transactions
or non-exempted continuing connected transactions under
the Listing Rules as at the date of this Annual Report. The
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (E)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered the following connected
transaction which was fully exempt under the Listing Rules.

(A) Connected Transaction

On 21 October 2021, renewed leased agreement was
entered into between Guangzhou Peiport Sijing
Optoelectronics System Limited (“Peiport Guangzhou)
(as tenant), and Ms. WONG (as landlord) to renew the
lease of property for a further term of two years.

Details of the renewed lease agreement (“Renewed
Lease Agreement”) are set out below:

HEXS

RER > AEEFTY MIBERS - BEE2E
@ EMRAIETHRE °

(A) BERS

RZZE-_—F+A=-+—H BMNEE
BIEABERZARAR ([HEEM]) (fE
BEP)HT LT (tEAEF )TV EEM
EnE - WEE - BEWENHEE - EH
A AEMF -

EEHEEwE(EEREMRE]) WFE
]}y

Maximum

Date of lease Area of annualrent  Use of
agreement Landlord Tenant Location of Property property Term payable  property
HEBZAH E£3 BE LES:E MEEE HE BREAFEHE WEAR
21 October 2021 Ms. WONG Peiport Guangzhou  Unit 1102, Block C, 192 sq.m. Period of two years RMB172,800  Office

Hesheng Jingguang Centre, commencing from

No. 11 Tangyan Road, 1 November 2021

Xi'an Hi-tech Industries

Development Zone,

Yantat District, Xi'an,

Shaanxi Province, the PRC
“B--F Tat =N FEKFEEEEERRSN 192F5Kk BZT-—F AR¥172,800  HWER

+A=1+—~8H RIEXREEETE 115 +—A—Hest
RERERLCEN02E REmE

According to HKFRS 16 “Leases” which has come into
effect on 1 January 2019, the Group is required to
recognise the value of the right-of-use asset on its
statement of financial position in connection with the
Renewed Lease Agreement, this transaction will be
regarded as acquisition of asset by the Group pursuant
to the Listing Rules. The value of the right-of-use asset
to be recognised by the Group under the Renewed
Lease Agreement was estimated to be approximately
HK$388,000, being the present value of the aggregate
lease payments using the rate applicable at the
commencement date of the Renewed Lease
Agreement in accordance with HKFRS 16 as
discounted using a discount rate which is equivalent to
the incremental borrowing rate. Right-of-use asset is
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

RIER B EREERFE 1655 HE (K
RZZT—NF—A—B4ER)  AEEHA
REMBEHRARPHREEREHHER
FREEESE  BELEMRA &R
SR EBAEBREELEE - NEB B
BREENEHZ TNERREESS
i 5H#)/A388,000 T - BRI & B B
BREERF 16N EERERHFAL
HEZERFI R ETFEARSERIEE
BRHA R RN ENHEEN KB
HEE - FHEEEAHBRZESE
e o
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ESTHE (E)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(A)

(B)

Connected Transaction (Continued)

Ms. WONG is our Controlling Shareholder and
executive Director. Accordingly, the transaction
contemplated under the Renewed Lease Agreement
will constitute connected transaction for our Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As all the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the
estimated value of the right-of-use asset to be
recognised by the Group under the Renewed Lease
Agreement are less than 5% and the total
consideration is less than HK$3,000,000, the
transaction contemplated under the Renewed Lease
Agreement is fully exempt under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Our Group has entered into a number of lease
agreement (together, the “Lease Agreements”, and
each the "Lease Agreement”) with the connected
persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) in our ordinary
and usual course of business, which constitute
continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules upon our Listing.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (E)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued) BERXS (&)
(B) Continuing Connected Transactions (B) “ERERS (&)
(Continued)
Details of these continuing connected transactions of AEEMNZEREREIFINF BRI
our Group are set out below: wm
Maximum
Date of Connected Location of Area of annual  Use of
lease agreement  Landlord Tenant Relationship property property Term rent payable  property
HEGHEAH ¥x HF BEER WL WEEH HH ENREFHE NXAR
9 March 2017 Ms. WONG Beijing Peiport Ms. WONG is Flat 2-7 on level 121 235.45sq.m.  Period of five years RMB360,000  Office
Jingdu Technology ~ our Controlling Block 1, Yuetan Mansion, commencing from
Limited Shareholder and No. 2 Yuetan North Street, 12 March 2017
("Peiport Beijing”) ~ executive Director Xicheng District,
Beijing, the PRC
—2—tF Fat ERBEFRHBHE IRTRERRERER FE R T AR E 2W645FF K —E—tF ARH360,000T  HHER
=AhA BRAR WniES RElE2RAEAE ZA+=RiE
(MERIR]) —E12182-7F RHRE
9 March 2017 Ms. WONG Peiport Beijing Ms. WONG is Flat 2-8 on level 121 123.56 sq.m.  Period of five years RMB357,600  Office
our Controlling Block 1, Yuetan Mansion, commencing from
Shareholder and No. 2 Yuetan North Street, 12 March 2017
executive Director Xicheng District,
Beijing, the PRC
—Tt%F Frt LR FRt AERRE R FEERTARER 12356 F ok —T—+4F ARY357600  HER
=ANA HTES REIE25% AEAR =A+=HiE
—E121182-8% RELF

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was
no material change in the Lease Agreements. There
was also no termination of the Lease Agreements, nor
was there any failure to terminate when the restrictions
that led to the adoption of the Lease Agreements are
removed.

The aggregate of the maximum annual rent payable by
the Group under all of the Lease Agreements described
above is approximately RMB717,600 and RMB179,400
which shall constitute the maximum amount of rent
payable by us to Ms. WONG for the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2022, respectively. In relation to
the Lease Agreements for the properties in Hong Kong,
our Group was not charged any rentals in respect of
our usage thereof before the entering into of the Lease
Agreements for the properties in Hong Kong.

RBE-F_—F+_A=1T—HLHF
B MEBIALEENED HELS
BEEL L EERRABEHZNE
TR R 7l R R By O A B AR (R (] R BEAR LETH
EErBER

NEBRE XAt A S e
M FHRARES RIL A ARE 717,600
TR ARBE179,4007T - HIEHFRNE
EZT—FK= "::¢+ A
Zt—HULEFEARIZETI RS
e REBWENHEERZEMS R
FIVEAMENHERZR - AEEW
EEFERA Y E M REEA RS -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(B) Continuing Connected Transactions

(Continued)

Ms. WONG is our Controlling Shareholder and
executive Director. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the Lease Agreements will
constitute continuing connected transactions for our
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Since each of applicable percentage ratios (other than
the profits ratio) as defined under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules for the Lease Agreements is expected to
be more than 0.1% but less than 5% on an annual
basis, the transactions contemplated under the Lease
Agreements are subject to the reporting, annual review
and announcement but will be exempted from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules,
the independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions
were entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) according to the agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company’s shareholders as a
whole.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESTHE (E)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(B) Continuing Connected Transactions
(Continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, Ernst &
Young, the Company's external auditors, were engaged
to report on the Group's continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information and with reference to
Practice Note 740 (Revised) Auditors’ Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under Hong Kong
Listing Rules issued by the HKICPA. Ernst & Young
issued an unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had no
connected transactions or continuing connected
tractions which fell to be disclosed in accordance with
the provisions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
in relation to the disclosure of connected transactions
and continuing connected transactions.

REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2021, the remuneration policy for
employees of the Group is determined based on their
responsibilities, qualifications, performance, experience and
seniority which are reviewed periodically.

Compensation of Directors of the Group is reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee, approved by the Board and
authorised by the shareholders at the AGM of the Company,
which is based on the Group’'s performance and the
Directors’ respective contributions to the Group.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” on pages 62 to 64 of this Annual Report.

BEEXZ (&)
(B) HEBEXS (H)

Bi% TR AIE 14A56 1§ - A ATINE
ZER L XK SR BB EZ LR
BRI ASRM BB ERERE
BIZ5 3000 5% (48 183]) N 2 FEHEZ A F
BRMEERZEZZTIEHRT W21
FEIEHBAE 74058 (AER]) IR & B _F
17 48 Rl BT 4 155 42 B 42 XX 59 1 4% 20 B0 1R 1
RAEBEZIFEEEIZFELHRE - R
B EMARBIE 14A 6615 Tk EEHAIE
BHEMAEERENEERER S
HEREER  UHBHBERMNERD
R o ZN7Q B) B A% EAM 1 1 B A TR 4R
FEEZFT o

B E XTI EES  AARBERE £
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FEBUR
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ESTHE (E)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by our
Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”
section on pages 33 to 52 of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the date of this Annual Report, at least 25% of the
Company's total number of issued shares were held by the
public.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant event after the reporting period are
set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM for
the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the independent

auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board of Directors

Mr. YEUNG Lun Ching
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong
30 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B R RENRE

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

EY=x

To the shareholders of Peiport Holdings Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Peiport Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 81 to 164, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

TGN EIAT
BB A FEREITIN
Ry — 27

Tel E:E5: +852 2846 9888

Fax {8 E: +852 2868 4432

ey.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B 2 RET RS ()

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

PEIPORT HOLDINGS LTD. / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

RRNER

BECREEFESMASRMNE BRI E
A ([EBETER D ETER - BEFELTFE
AT AENECEEESNERE [ F
BRI EBRAFENEE | — iR EfE—
SR - RIEBESTMASEMH(EXS
srEmERZTA) (T781))  BEFEBURN BE
 WERETHBETEMBEEEE - BFHE
5 BEEMESHEZREEZRMNEER

BEEHNERIRHER -

REEREE

BAREZFRESREBEESNERHE - RRY
ARG EMBERENECRB/EZNER » %
FERTHEETERBRRAMBRR L
HAERRETRIEN HESTEHRES
REHEBNER - BEFUTAE—FHENE
st A BRI R TR AL B S = e

BECRITESNMSE (KM ERFEHY
BHMEFAENEE| —HEANEE - B%
HZEEEEMNEE - HEHS  EENER
THESERRTRELEFENGEMBHRREXN
55 R R R SR T BR AT BAXIRFF » BFHITE
ZREFNGER  BREE MREFEMATHE
Fr RERAMBHRRERE RIRH AR -



Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B R RET RS ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BAREREE

HREZSE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

EENERNTEERRELSE

Impairment assessment of trade and bills receivables

BB WA R E W E 1R 8 6 (8 7

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had trade and bills receivables
of HK$100,520,000, after making a provision of HK$2,786,000. The
Group applies the simplified approach to provide impairment for
expected credit losses (“ECLs") under HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime ECLs for all trade and bills receivables. To
measure the ECLs, trade and bills receivables are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due, and the
calculation of ECLs is based on the historical observable default
rates and forward-looking information. The ECLs of trade and bills
receivables were HK$2,786,000 as at 31 December 2021.
RZZEZ—F+-A=+—H  EXE{ELEH 2,786,000 Ti&
B E 5 pEWRIE R EWER 100,520,000 - BEEERA[L
% BB mELERFESR THEHEEEE(BHEEEE]D
TR ER M - IR FTRLTE B 5 R FIE & E K REE A 2 8
BEEEEE - EEMEEER  BHRKREREREERE
BELAREERREHERSBHBHESE  MEHEEBEEILDERB
EAEENIERERFIEEENTE R E_—F+_A=1—
HEE 5 RUGRIA & E W R IR T8 Bi{E § 851845 2,786,000 8 7T °

We focused on this area because it required a high level of
management judgement and estimation and the amounts involved
were material.
EEHEIZEBETENEZTESKTNERB A KM - Bk
SREEK -

The Group’s disclosures of the trade and bills receivables are
included in notes 3 and 17 to the financial statements.
EEEHEIRUFERERRENRBEH N B RRMTI R
17 °

We assessed the Group's internal control
over the credit control of trade and bills
receivables. We also reviewed management'’s
assessment regarding the recoverability of
the Group’s trade and bills receivables by
evaluating the assumptions and
methodologies of the ECL model, obtaining
evidence which included background search
and review of repayment history, checking
the accuracy of ageing of trade and bills
receivables and forward-looking information,
and recalculating ECLs. We also assessed the
disclosures related to trade and bills
receivables in the consolidated financial

statements.
EEFE EEEHEZRKRITERBRER

EEEHNAEHES - EFRFHABRREEE
BRINBRREDE  BERER(BERERHA
BEREHERCE)  REEHREFRARE
WERIEARE AT LB BB R B E
BEHMEERE EUENEEEN B55EHH
25 FE WK TR Ko B M S2 4 0 ] g [0 4 SEE 1T RO R
it - BEEMFHESEAMBHRERP I RE SR
RIARERBERAEEES -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREREE

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

HRELZSE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

EENERNMEEFARELRSE

Allowance for inventory obsolescence

HREFEREE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had inventories of
HK$68,251,000, after making allowance for inventory obsolescence
of HK$2,651,000. Allowance for inventory obsolescence is based
on management’s judgement using the available data and existing
circumstances, including, but not limited to, the physical conditions,
market selling prices and estimated selling costs of the inventories.
RZZTEZ—F+_A=+—H  BESEHELREGFTER®E
2,651,000 L% 517 568,251,000 C - REGFEREHENE
BECAAGSHELREEL(BEETRAEFENYEAMR - T
5B RIAFTHE KA ME L 8) 2 & -

We focused on this area as the inventories were material to the
consolidated financial statements and the determination of
allowance for inventory obsolescence involved significant
management’s judgement and estimation.
EEMRIZEBE AN FEHGAVBBRERBEAN  HEERET
EREIREEENE XA RbET -

The Group's disclosures of the inventories are included in notes 3
and 16 to the financial statements.

BEEEHFENREHNMERERMEIR16-
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We attended management’s inventory counts
and observed the processes at material
inventory locations, including observing the
processes implemented by management to
identify and monitor obsolete inventories. \We
evaluated the assessments made by
management in respect of the identification
of inventory obsolescence by assessing the
inventory costing, ageing reports, and
obsolete inventories on a sampling basis. We
re-calculated the allowance for inventory
obsolescence in accordance with the Group’s
policy.
EELREEENFERRITNFEFEME
BREHET  PREREBEREEERBAINRER
BREFEMERNET - EEHETEFERK
- BRERHRENMRETS  BEUNEERER
BRIREFEMEL NG - EFRE
EHHRREN T EREFTERE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B R RET RS ()

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. WWe have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

The directors of the Company are assisted by the
Company’s audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B R RET RS ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

BRBMRERGS M B RRAEREN
B1E (&)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

R A BRI - AR
MEHER  BYFEEY BEEH

i
MARHEHIN AR RER -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B 2 RET RS ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Hui Kin Fai, Stephen.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEEaREMEEKER

Year ended 31 December 2021 E#Z —F ——# 1+ _-H=1—HIFZE

4

2021 2020
—E-—& —E-THF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE TET FAT
REVENUE I % 5 279,371 290,590
Cost of sales SHEM A (197,020) (207,334)
Gross profit EF 82,351 83,256
Other income and gains, net Hib g A R UES R4 5 3,068 8,406
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEET (30,735) (29,132)
Administrative expenses THEX (30,101) (28,316)
Other expenses Hibfk (4,184) (1,293)
Finance costs B AE A AR 7 (488) (383)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AR R 6 19,911 32,538
Income tax expense Frfafi 10 (3,171) (5,352)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERF 16,740 27,186
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME H 2 &2
Other comprehensive income that BEDN S DS e B
may be reclassified to profit or loss  BREMHEMEEUE
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation HBEINH T R BE R
of foreign operations 1,652 2,765
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME £ RE 2wk
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX HBRBEE 1,652 2,765
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #£Rx2HEz4 %58
FOR THE YEAR 18,392 29,951
Profit/(loss) attributable to: TR B RT, (BE)
Owners of the parent BRAHERA 16,982 27,186
Non-controlling interests I A 2S (242) -
16,740 27,186
Total comprehensive incomef(loss) A& ELZMH
attributable to: Wz (E51E) 8%
Owners of the parent [SYNCIE/ SN 18,634 29,951
Non-controlling interests IR A RS (242) -
18,392 29,951
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREBEEAFEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EhEEREF
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT
Basic and diluted EARREE 12 HK4.25 centsBfl  HK6.80 cents il
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31 December 2021 —FE—-—#+1+_-HA=+—H

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BT FET T TT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FIRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BRE KRG 13 8,078 9,011
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14 5,070 6,902
Intangible assets EAE 15 1,088 726
Deferred tax assets IR E B 23 3,442 2,029
Total non-current assets ERBEEAE 17,678 18,668
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 16 68,251 70,018
Trade and bills receivables E 5 RINGRIE K R N E & 17 100,520 83,683
Prepayments, deposits and AR - Bk
other receivables H b ek a8 18 22,074 22,987
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIESZEEY 19 223,963 210,150
Total current assets MBI EERAE 414,808 386,838
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables 2 5 et 508 20 27,091 14,638
Other payables and accruals HihpE A R ES B 21 14,881 13,416
Contract liabilities BHEE 22 14,754 15,108
Lease liabilities HEaRE 14 4,166 4,502
Tax payable PR IE 4,952 3,625
Total current liabilities mEIREAE 65,844 51,189
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 348,964 335,649
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #EERABAaE
LIABILITIES 366,642 354,317
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBERS
Lease liabilities HEaRE 14 1,348 3,034
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIEE & 23 119 -
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEAE 1,467 3,034
Net assets BEFHE 365,175 351,283

PEIPORT HOLDINGS LTD. / ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
e AR IR ()

31 December 2021 —FE—-—#+—-HA=+—H

7

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
k3 FET FHET
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of & AFEEAEGER
the parent

Share capital A&z 24 4,000 4,000
Reserves E 25 360,517 347,283
364,517 351,283
Non-controlling interests FEIERR RE RS 658 -
Total equity W eE 365,175 351,283

YEUNG Lun Ching

BRE
Director

EF

WONG Kwan Lik

B3]
Director
2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e EIR

Year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —F - —F+_-H=+—HIFFZ

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRARE AL
Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share Share Other  surplus fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium*  reserve®  reserve®  reseve®  profitst Total  interests equity
EERE BB SRR
BA RIVEE* EtbEf B BR* RERR st En  EafE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK§'000  HK§'000  HKS'000
Thr Thr TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn
(note 24) (note 25)  (note 25)
(Wiztaa) (Wz2s)  (Wi2s)
. _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ |
At 1 January 2020 RZEZFE-H-H 4000 102,246 (66,843 4,135 (2478) 280272 321,332 - WU
Profit for the year EERH - - - - - 27188 27,186 - 27,186
Other comprehensive income  FREM2EYE :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BENEERNEL =8
translation of foreign operations - - - - 2,765 - 2,765 - 2,765
Total comprehensive income ~~ ERZEMEEE
for the year - - - - 2,765 27,186 29,951 - 29,951
Transfer from retained profits ~ BEBRBEA - - - 865 - (865) - - -
At 31 December 2020 and R-Z-E5+-A=1-H
1 January 2021 k=%=-%-f-A 4000 102246 (66,843 5,000 87 306593 351283 - 351,283
Profitfloss) for the year EEEH/(EB) - - = = - 16982 16982 (242) 16,740
Other comprehensive income R EMRFME :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BENEZHER 2
translation of foreign operations - - - - 1,652 - 1,652 - 1,652
Total comprehensive incomeflloss) M2 ENE/ (Kl £8
for the year - - - - 1,652 16,982 18,634 (242) 18,392
Transfer from retained profits ERBREEN = - - 485 - (485) - - -
Final 2020 dividend paid BNZE-EFKRE - (5400 - - - - (5,400 - (5400
Capital contrloution from FERERE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - 900 900
At 31 December 2021 RZE--%+-A=1-H 4,000 96,846  (66,843) 5,485 1939 323,090 364517 658 365,175
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of @ ZEREEREREGAMBURARANNEEREE

HK$360,517,000 (2020: HK$347,283,000) in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

360,517,000/ 70 ( —F — T4 : 347,283,000/&7T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SERERER

Year ended 31 December 2021 E#Z —F ——# 1+ _-H=1—HIFZE

2021 2020
ZE--F ke ke S
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FRT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHABEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: BRI AE 19,911 32,538
Adjustments for: HATEBIELAE
Finance costs B RSA AR 7 488 383
Bank interest income HRITH SUWA 5 (170) (587)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment RETEE Eia 6 581 90
Depreciation of property, plant and YE - BEMRETE
equipment 6 3,158 3,035
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEERE 6 5,938 5,632
Amortisation of intangible assets A 6 553 351
Provision for inventory obsolescence,  [FRETFEE#E T2
net 6 347 1,898
Provision for doubtful receivables, net  fEUt I8 R B #5558 6 1,009 677
Written-off of trade receivables EMISHE 5 I UGR IR 6 2,053 -
33,868 43,917
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL,/(38m) 2,612 (20,967)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 MR KR E S
bills receivables (&), wd (17,262) 26,722
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TBRFIE « e REMEK
deposits and other receivables IR,/ (3E0) 1,246 (16,140)
Increase in trade payables B 5 e FRIE AN 8,831 547
Increase in other payables and accruals — Efth e 5% 18 & fE=T & F 21N 1,164 3,103
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities &2 43& & GRA), /120 (671) 7,069
Cash generated from operations EEMELRS 29,788 44,251
Interest received SIS 170 587
Interest paid SRS (488) (383)
Income taxes paid EATATEH (3,222) (9,198)
Net cash flows from operating activities L& EEFEHESTEEE 26,248 35,257
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Year ended 31 December 2021 #Z —F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZ

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
mEeEBEERER(E)

2021 2020
—B-—-F ke ke S
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B aE THET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZBFBRENE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, Wi - BELEEEER
plant and equipment 13 (2,586) (1806)
Additions of intangible assets RBEEVEE = (165)
Net cash flows used in investing REERSAE SRS FE
activities (2,586) (351)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMETBMERERE
ACTIVITIES
Principal portion of lease payments HENZREEH 26(b) (6,129) (5,317)
Dividends paid BB (5,400) -
Net cash flows used in BB EHFARS RE %58
financing activities (11,529) (5,317)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND REeRBESEEYEMTE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 12,133 29,589
Cash and cash equivalents at FHRe RREEEY
beginning of year 210,150 177,127
Effect of foreign exchange rate SNV P SR A B 2 B R
changes, net 1,680 3,434
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESRASEEY
AT END OF YEAR 223,963 210,150
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF ReRBEZEYNEHRDIT
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e RIRITMR 19 220,180 206,367
Non-pledged time deposits with EABRTEIEHE ALR
original maturity of less than = @Az EE
three months when acquired EHTFER 19 3,783 3,783
Cash and cash equivalents as REEERERERZEIZ
stated in the consolidated RekReFEY
statement of cash flows 19 223,963 210,150
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% s ZR B &

31 December 2021 —E—-——4#F+_-H=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARAREEER
Peiport Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) was BRERABERAR(ARRDR=ZF
incorporated as an exempted company with limited —+tF T+ AT NBREREHS AT
liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Act (B ERe RER]) ER S EF MK
(as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands on RERRPBRATF - ANATAEMEE
19 December 2017. The registered office address of pE ik & Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. 1111, Cayman Islands °
The Company is an investment holding company. ARRA R/ —HEEZERAT - FALXR
During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries AIREIB AR (FHE [ AEE ) EEH
(collectively the “Group”) were principally engaged in ERMENBKEER LRSS : () BBE
the provision of (i) thermal imaging products and PR EE o M AR ¢ R (iii) A M 2= 2 fn %
services; (ii) self-stabilised imaging products and AR °
services; and (iii) general aviation products and
services.
In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding EERE ARENRRERAARE
company of the Group is Peiport Alpha Ltd., which was EMBEBRAR  HR—BREBA
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI") with AR ((RBHERRES ) Mz
limited liability and is controlled by Mr. YEUNG Lun WERAR WXiHmiak (5%
Ching (“Mr. YEUNG") and Ms. WONG Kwan Lik (“Ms. EDREBALE([EL])3EH -
WONG").
Information about subsidiaries MELRER
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as RATAIMERBMNEELRT
follows:
Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration and registered attributable
Name business share capital to the Company Principal activities
R/ AR ERTEER/ AR
£ KEhE R A g TEEHR
Direct Indirect
HiE B
% %
Peiport Bravo Ltd. BVI/Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Investment holding
BRERERAR RBERRNEE/BE AT KA
Peiport Creative Ltd. BVI/Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Investment holding
BREBTERAR RBERRNEE/BE AT KA
Peiport Delta Ltd. BVI/Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Investment holding
RBERRNEE/BE AT KA

HEERAERAR /2021 F3f
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31 December 2021 —FE—-—#+1+_-HA=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Name

£

Place of

incorporation/
registration and

business

R/ AR

BEwH

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital

BRILER/

EmRA

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1. RARKEEER(F)

Connax Education Limited

BEHEARAT

Peiport Scientific Aero Limited

/

HEMAARAA

Peiport Industries Limited

DNL Optoelec Systems Limited
BEKEZRERDF
Dr X Academy of Robotics and

Coding Hong Kong Limited

BELHEARER(BR)
BRRA

PEIPORT HOLDINGS LTD. / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Hong Kong
0

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

30

Hong Kong
0

Hong Kong

71

30

HK$1
18T

HK$1

18T

HK$2,000,000

2,000,000/ 7T

HK$1,000,000

1,000,000 7T

HK$3,000,000

3,000,000/ 7T

AR ER ()
Percentage
of equity
attributable
to the Company Principal activities
KAREMR
EHEA TEEHK
Direct Indirect
B B
% %
- 100 Investment holding
RERR
- 100  Provision of (i) thermal imaging

products and services; (i)
self-stabilised imaging
products and services; and (i)
general aviation products
and services

TR ftt () BAAKIR E o B AR
i) ERERGER RS : R
(i) 38 A 22 B m X R 7

Provision of (i) thermal imaging
products and services; (i)
self-stabilised imaging
products and services; and (i)
general aviation products
and services

Heflt () BRI 2 n B BT
i) ERERGER KRR : R
(i) 38 A 22 B m X R 7

Provision of thermal imaging
products and services

RACARKGEm R RH

Provision of science, technology,
engineering, mathematics,
coding and robotics education
services

RERE - ffl IR 82
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
B ISR MaE (4])
31 December 2021 —ZE-——#+_-F=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REREBEER (&)
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEARER (&)
Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration and registered attributable
Name business share capital to the Company Principal activities
R/ ERAR BRTEER/ FARELR
£ ok fRA BEEDL TEXK
Direct Indirect
B ol
% %
. ________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Peiport (Shanghai) Optoelectronics  People’s Republic Renminbi = 100 Provision of (i) thermal imaging
Technology Limited © of China ("RMB") products and services; (ii)
(the "PRC")/ 20,180,000 self-stabilised imaging
Mainland China products and services; and {iii)
general aviation products
and services
BE (DB ABRBBRAFY  REARLNE ARE(TAEE]) Heflt () B 2 on IR
([ /hERs 20,180,000 i) BEBERGERRRS : &
() 78 PR 22 2 o X PR
Guangzhou Peiport Sijing PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100 Provision of (i) thermal imaging
Optoelectronics System Limited ® products and services; (i)

self-stabilised imaging
products and services; and {iii)
general aviation products

and services
ENGEREBXEZAERARAY  FE/HEA AE% TR () BB R B o PR T
20,000,000 70 i) ERERGER KRR : R
(i) B A= mm X R
Beijing Peiport Jingdu PRC/Mainland China RMB5, 100,000 - 100 Provision of (i) thermal imaging
Technology Limited ® products and services; (i)

self-stabilised imaging
products and services; and {iii)
general aviation products

and services

TR ErRFRRER AR HE /B A ARH5,100,0007C Tk (1) 2R G 2E o R AR
i) BEBEKEEMRRSE &
(i) 3 PR 22 22 m S PR 7
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
B IS R M (5)

31 December 2021 —ZF —

2.1

—fFf+-_A=1—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AERREEER (&)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEARER (&)
Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration and registered attributable
Name business share capital to the Company Principal activities
R/ AR BRTLER/ NG )i
£ REmy A EHEA TEEHK
Direct Indirect
i G
% %
Peiport (Zhuhai) Air Equipment PRC/Mainland China United States - 100  Provision of general aviation
Manufacturing Limited @ dollars ("US$") products and services
250,000
RS MERMBEERARY FE,/ PR 250,000% 7T REBRNZER L%
(EZH)
(a) Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC law (a) RIERBEEFMAIINEBERE
(b) Registered as limited liability companies under the PRC law (b) REFBEETMABR AR
BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 REE%E
The financial statements have been prepared in R NBRESEeHMAS((ES
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting A AD |) BHNE B ERE XL
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which include all HKFRSs, (AT BHREED]) (BIEFETEH
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and B EER - HE LB

Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention. The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
ISR MEE ()
31 December 2021 —ZE-——#+_-F=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.1 mEBEEE)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

REANREE (&)

MEBARARARAFRERKLFREHNE
B(EREBEER) EAKEH2HE
REHREBNFPRRAERRKF
BRENANESEBHIEH RAE N (B
AEEEETHRARENNTEREHR
HRRA BRI HER) B % S R R
BIER{S 2 I #E -

HARBEEAMEZREEPRRELHR
REBRERBOURA R - BIARE
ERFEERTHAHREHRNEN
BeEZE—HEBREERER 81

(a) HEREHRNHMBEEZERBAN
BRI

(b) EMEKLHPIELNEN &

() ARENRERREBEERTRE-

B A B M R E R EARR —
MEBRZRA RS HRGS - M8
NEMFRERASERSEHEE AL
AAARARE - YREFAGAKRER
ZIEHIEEIEE R B

BaEkEmeEkaEn S EAKE DR
BRASESRARNES A RIEERE
o AELREEBRERES L RE
MR TEABAASESKE QAR
MR ZHEERLARHEEREE
#mE WA AxXhBEEZREERNHS
FRE R 2 BURE o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’'s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year's financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, — Phase 2
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Amendment to HKFRS 16

The adoption of the revised HKFRSs does not have any
material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework'

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®®

Amendments to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

HKFRS 9 — Comparative
Information?

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current>*
Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?
Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction?
Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract'

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
Illustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
s No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
& As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the corresponding wording
with no change in conclusion

5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that
permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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2.3

24

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSS
(Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon
initial application. So far, the Group considers that these
new and revised HKFRSs may result in changes in
accounting policies but are unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:TBRHE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured

or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,

D FEEE (&)

NPERMBERRAEXREZMEER
ENBENERHYAFEFEEEMS
BERZ&REBABEBZUTAEE

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the £ SR

fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in F—H — HREREEFXEER
active markets for identical assets or VR T 35 2 B (R
liabilities FHEE)

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which F-H — ERYQATEFEmS
the lowest level input that is significant BEAZABR(ERE
to the fair value measurement is ) &K [E &3 A
observable, either directly or indirectly B2 mERE

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which E=K — HERHEATEFEMS
the lowest level input that is significant BERZTAIBEER
to the fair value measurement is B A BUR 2 (B E

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

IEREEUEEENMBRRERZEE
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24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the asset’'s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In
testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion
of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a
headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest
group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) bhas significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:TBRHE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:
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BB 2 fEEHE R FHMEER A ERIERE
BFE - BULMEA EZFXRMT

Buildings 5% g5 5%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the HEMFERE R E I 20%
lease terms and 20% LR E

Furniture, fixtures and 20% to 33'3%

BRI RER 20% to 33'/3%

office equipment MWAERE
Plant and machinery 20% to 33'/3% TR 5 T B A, 20% to 33'/s%
Equipment for rental purpose  20% FRERE 2 &iE 20%
Motor vehicles 33"/3% E 33":%
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100

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Computer software and intellectual property
license

Purchased computer software and acquired license are
stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of 3 to 5 years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Several warehouses, system
integration and service centres,
office properties and a car parking
space (collectively the
"Properties”)

1to 5 years
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:TBREE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:TBRHE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)
(b) Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of |lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in profit or loss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessor (Continued)

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee are accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’'s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’'s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade and bills
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs. Trade and bills receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:TBRHE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets RENRHMERMEE (B)
(Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued) BRERRE (F)

The Group's business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial
assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
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of financial assets that require delivery of assets within BE -
the period generally established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement BRETE

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

CREENREAEIARESE &
FIgn

BEBHERITENEMEE (EFTA)
BREHER A ENSREERRKRERAE
BRA KR E - WA FRE - Was KR E

BREERILER  (EHSRERRE
AP ER o

HEERAERAR /2021 F3f

105



N

B R R M EE (48

31 December 2021 —E—-——#F+_-H=+—H

24

106

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what
extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:TBRHE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are
provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 1 year past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade and bills receivables which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

— Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 —

Stage 3 —  Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime

ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:TBRHE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables
and financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:TBREE (&)

110

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, trade payables and financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the special
identification basis and, in the case of semi-finished
products and finished products, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:TBRHE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed. Government grants
related to income are presented as other income in
profit or loss.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration
is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:TBREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(a) Sale of products

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery
of the products.

(b) Provision of maintenance services

Revenue from the provision of maintenance
services is recognised over the scheduled period
on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources

Equipment rental income is recognised on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or the a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES®:TBRHE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Finance costs

Finance costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’'s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 =ESiBERHIE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued) S (&)

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries are ETHERRIMNINEEEIIEETT - X
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the WMEHRR ZEZEBNEERBEERR
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of FHRNERERBRE BT HEx
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at B2 5 B HRIRTE R E A EXIR

the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their profit or loss is translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign

Fﬁ%i[%%ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁi@% u/b&
R R B EET Rt - HEBINER
W BREZETE SN EBOHEAMD 2 E K

operation, the component of other comprehensive AP MNIBRER o

income relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash HGEEHRERERME  BTHBEAF
flows, the cash flows of certain subsidiaries are ZHEenEREen=E A BHNRITER
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates RME BB - BINNBRAREFEEE

ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements

2R BARREE 2 NET 5 E
EHE BT o

BEREEHE RS

EEERUEANTENT B HRKE - BIF

requires management to make judgements, estimates T (R R BRRR M FHE - &
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of ARBREMERMNNE  AY - BE

revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:
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3.

120

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Significant judgement in determining the lease
term of contracts with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include
extension and termination options. The Group applies
judgement in evaluating whether or not to exercise the
option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event
or change in circumstances that is within its control and
affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the
option to renew or to terminate the lease (e.g.,
construction of significant leasehold improvements or
significant customisation to the leased asset).

The Group includes the renewal period as part of the
lease term for leases of the Properties due to the
significance of these assets to its operations. These
leases have a short non-cancellable period (i.e., one to
five years) and there will be a significant negative effect
on production if a replacement is not readily available.

Withholding taxes arising from the distribution of
dividends

The Group's determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes arising from the distribution of
dividends from subsidiaries according to the relevant
tax jurisdictions is subject to judgement on the timing
of the payment of the dividends. Management
considered that it is not probable that the Group's
subsidiaries in Mainland China will distribute retained
profits in the foreseeable future, and accordingly no
provision for withholding tax was made. Where the
final outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts originally rewarded, the difference will impact
the deferred tax provision in the period in which the
difference arises.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for certain
deductible temporary differences and unpaid expenses
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. Further
details are contained in note 23 to the financial
statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade and
bills receivables

The Group makes allowances on receivables based on
assumptions about the risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group's past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates
at the end of the reporting period.

Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of trade and bills receivables and the expected
credit loss allowance in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed. Further details of the trade
and bills receivables are given in note 17 to the financial
statements.

EXREFHE R A (&)

fhEF R RHEE M

BERRSREIELNEBRRLEM
TR B ERIANT - ZFER
EHAAREE N —VRFENEERA
EREELIREAHE -

EEBIREE

BEERBREERE TAIHNREREZER
KRS INARER - T AR &
B EBR A LIS A AR ER Al 0
EREERRRERTIGH - (BT
EEEEEAHE - RIFRKERT G
) B B 7] % 7K P 5 [R) R 2R R 75 AR 81 3R
B BEAERNEERBAEESHE -
#E— IR M SRR 23 -

ESRWAREREREEAMEESE
B

AEERBEEODRAREBHBEEXNRE
RAT R R IR R R - AR BIREL %
FRBIEFREEOBABERET
EHE - Lt IRBAKE A BERE
R &S BRAE BT R ATRE AT -

IR A BN R A5 IBRERE
FEEHRUGARERREIAKLTAN
FEEBRBBERZEESH[ 2 Em
B - BERAESREFAREBRERZE
SHBENMBRERMET7 -

HEERAERAR /2021 F3f

121



|

122

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
B IS R M (5)

31 December 2021 —E—-——#F+_-H=+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing
rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The
IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to
pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such
as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease (for example,
when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit
rating).

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is
made based on the estimated net realisable value of
the inventories. The assessment of the provision
required involves management’'s judgement and
estimates on market conditions. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such differences will have an impact
on the carrying amounts of inventories and the write-
down and reversal of write-down of inventories in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.
Further details are given in note 16 to the financial
statements.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., ReEHIER

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of AEBFERFRERAKNEGER KR
thermal imaging products and services, self-stabilised % BREKEGE®RRRBMERMZE
imaging products and services and general aviation EmERE - 3EEIRS B REMGT (G M
products and services. Information reported to the AEBFEZERRAZBROER &
Group's chief operating decision maker, for the FRAEEZBEELEER  BAEH
purposes of resource allocation and performance MNERKEES BWE BB LS
assessment, focuses on the operating results of the DEER o Bt WEETLEDFE
Group as a whole as the Group's resources are Ko

integrated and no discrete operating segment
information is available. Accordingly, no operating
segment information is presented.

Geographical information & & R
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) ZREMBEFHIWE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
Mainland China PR B A 4 233,145 222,878
Hong Kong and Macau E8 KR 42,769 65,282
Overseas BT 3,457 2,430
279,371 290,590
The revenue information above is based on the il B R IR IR R F R R 1
locations of the customers. o
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REHEIEFR (F)
(Continued)
Geographical information (Continued) wEER (&)
(b) Non-current assets (b) ERBEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Mainland China R B A 3 7,425 11,611
Hong Kong &5 6,811 5,028
14,236 16,639
The non-current assets information above is based EAIEREEEE R IRIEEER
on the locations of the assets and excludes EHEL  TEEREERIBEEE °

deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers FERFER

Revenue derived from sales to individual customers REE_ZE-_—FR-_FT_TF+-_A
which contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the =+—HLEFE BEAEEBKTH
Group during the years ended 31 December 2021 and B10% ZEAABFHEMSRENT

2020 is as follows:

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Customer A EEA N/A FE A * 45,676

Customer B ZFB N/A FE A * 37,1563
o The corresponding revenues from these customers are not disclosed as * ARKRER S SR EB G AEERE10%
the revenue individually did not account for 10% or more of the Group's sAE - REZERFHARREGET T HE -

revenue for the respective periods.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 5. Wz HEttARIREFHE
NET

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is Was ~ MR A R FEITOT
as follows:
Revenue W %
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FH&TT
Thermal imaging products and services ZEk & 2= 5 & IR 75
— Sales of goods Note 4 — HEE N 102,357 150,430
— Rendering of maintenance — RHEERE R
services and equipment HiETREMEe
rental Note 8 12,225 12,411
114,582 162,841
Self-stabilised imaging products BRETEHREE QMR
and services
— Sales of goods Note @ — HEEEHEA 34,505 21,148
— Rendering of maintenance — RMEEEIRTE &
services and equipment HEFREEe
rental Note (&) 14,525 11,701
49,030 32,849

General aviation products and services @Rz E @ RRGE

— Sales of goods Note @ — SHEE EHEe 113,832 93,737
— Rendering of maintenance — RERE R EE
services Nete ® 1,678 1,163
115,510 94,900
Others Hib 249 -
Total Bzt 279,371 290,590
Note (A The revenue from the sale of goods was recognised at a point in time. HEEA e 2 0 U 28 THIA RS RS BEAE AR
Note®: The revenue from the rendering of maintenance services and MEE 1R A S AR A R R 1R AR S U s T B I
equipment rental was recognised over time, which included operating R HBEEE_E_—F+-_A=+—H
lease income of HK$2,256,000 (2020: HK$3,625,000) for the year ended I FEREEEE WA 2,256,000 T (=T
31 December 2021. ZZ4 ¢ 3,625,000/57T) ©

sEERERAR /20215% 12D



w

|
)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

B B AR Y EE (AR

31 December 2021 —FE—-—#+1+_-HA=+—H

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 5. & - HttWw A R WS 55 (8)
NET (Continued)

Performance obligations BHEE

The performance obligation for the sales of goods is HEEMMBANEARRNEYRIEST
satisfied upon delivery of the goods and the MIELT - MIB A RENEZEEESN
performance obligation for the rendering of FE #95 F RI) BE 2 12 45 AR 7% i B B P HE 75
maintenance services and equipment rental is satisfied M METT °

over time as services are rendered.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the R=-F = — ¢ rFZEZFTF+ A
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or =+ —HEEFBEHET CRETH
partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 17385 %Z%nﬁﬁ@ﬁ) KR 5 EAE A
are as follows: T @

2021 2020

:%:E:_qi —7—75'5
HK$°000 HK$'000

FTEx FAT
Amounts expected to be recognised TEHRE R AT S48 -
as revenue:
Within one year —F R 8,313 9,732
After one year — &% 13,799 19,614
22,112 29,346
For contracts of the sale of goods with original HRVEMHFEREIR—FENHEEE
expected duration of less than one year, the Group has mMAHNME  AEBEEEBTHELSR
elected not to disclose information about the remaining FHRBEHOEENER - RRVIEFFE
performance obligations. All considerations from REMNR—FNEFAEHAMEKRNETE
contracts with customers with original expected REEBEEXRZERT  AWTER
duration of not less than one year have been included BN ERWENEEF o

in the transaction prices and, therefore, were included
in the information disclosed in the above table.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 5. W&  HW AR W= FEE (E)
NET (Continued)

Other income and gains, net HA g A R W 25 F R
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Bank interest income HRITHEWA 170 587
Recovery of written-off trade e B B #fi 55 & 5 e W GRIE
receivables 1 32
Government grants* TR T e B * 336 1,679
Foreign exchange differences, net b H Z RS EE 2,524 5,991
Others EAh 37 117
3,068 8,406
o Government grants mainly represented subsidies obtained from local e BT 78 Bh = Z 15 8 b 5 BUT #8 P BT 8O
government authorities. There are no unfulfilled conditions or Bl o SZ S BN R E P (K s AE IS -

contingencies relating to these grants.
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|
)

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PBRBEAINER
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after RNEB KR FL AR R T &M (GTA)
charging/(crediting): AT & IR ZER -
2021 2020
—E—F —ECERE
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
5T FET FHTT
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 186,218 198,071
Cost of services provided RHARFS A AR 10,802 9,263
Depreciation of property, Y% - B REHETE
plant and equipment 13 3,158 3,035
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {# B#EEETE 14 5,938 5,532
Amortisation of intangible assets 7 & &= # 4 15 553 351
Research and development costs  #f 2K Zx 6,183 5,588
Provision for doubtful JE W R TE R BR B B VSRR
receivables, net 1,009 677
Recovery of written-off W (5] 2 Hi 55 B 5 e W Zh0E
trade receivables 5 (1) (32)
Written-off of trade receivables B E 5 rE kIR 17 2,053 -
Provision for inventory PRET ERE TR
obsolescence, net 347 1,898
Employee benefit expense EERAIFAY
(excluding directors” and (TEFEEER
chief executive officer's 17 R 48 5 37
remuneration (note 8)): (PfFEES)) -
Wages and salaries TERF® 37,927 40,001
Pension scheme contributions RINEETEIH IR
(defined contribution TEREFRETE]) *
scheme)* 6,005 2,709
43,932 42,710
Auditor’'s remuneration A ST 1,300 1,280
Foreign exchange differences, HE 3, ZE RR R *
net** 5 (2,524) (5,991)
Loss on disposal of items of HEDE BEN
property, plant and equipment S EIEE R 581 90
Bank interest income RITHI B UA 5 (170) (5687)
o There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as * MEBSRERATHAEE (EREX) AR
the employer to reduce the existing level of contributions. HRR R EHFOKTE
=0 The foreign exchange gain, net is included in “Other income and gains, *x SME W aRFRE AT A SRS 18 5w S Hfth B T I ER
net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other FPH [HAnA R Was F5E ] -

comprehensive income.
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. B
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MK ADITAT -
2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FAT
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERNE 488 383
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 8. EERTHARTM
OFFICER’'S REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive officer's remuneration BEEEBMER AR QA ([HR
for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing Frl) EREH EmRA( EmHRAD) -
the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of The & N aME I 5 383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ (c) K (f)
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock BEAR AR (REZESNaER) ROIE
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), 2EP TR A F NE E R AT BUARE B an
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and T 38
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2021 2020

—B-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Fees we 375 360
Salaries, allowances and e ERREWER

benefits in kind 5,379 4,767

Performance related bonuses FIRMERATEAT 780 735

Pension scheme contributions RIRS TR 24 36

6,558 5,898
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 8 EERTHARFM (&)
OFFICER’S REMUNERATION (Continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BUFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive FRAMBLIERITEETI RS
directors during the year were as follows: o
2021 2020

—EB-—F —EEF
HK$°000 HK$'000

FTER FAT
Mr. NIU Zhongjie HeEE A 125 120
Ms. YEUNG Hiu Fu Helen [l St 125 120
Mr. HOU Min EIRGE 125 120
375 360
There were no other emoluments payable to the FRABBEEMEMNBIIENTES
independent non-executive directors during the HMe(ZZE_FF : |) -

year (2020: Nil).
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 8.
OFFICER’S REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors and the chief executive

EERTHRARTH (&)

(b) BITEBRTHAR

officer
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
2021 in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
D= 193 REME Bik&
—E-f ENER 4L sHEIftER E Pk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FTAT TER
. __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
Mr. YEUNG BrE 2,134 310 - 2,444
Ms. WONG* A 1,987 286 6 2,279
Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai BIRELE 1,258 184 18 1,460
5,379 780 24 6,183
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
2020 in kind bonuses  contributions remuneration
e 2R KA RIkE
—ECTF EYEF TE4T BEGS il
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx 5T THT
Mr. YEUNG HEE 1,922 295 - 2,217
Ms. WONG* Ee® 1,774 265 18 2,057
Mr. YEUNG Chun Tai iRR LA 1,071 175 18 1,264
4,767 735 36 5,638
@ Ms. WONG is also the chief executive officer of the Company. * EREMARRARITREE °

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2020: Nil).

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office (2020: Nil).

RER - REFHEESHEXRE
BEEAFHFM L (T _FF
&)

RER » REFITERESFH
B E & hn A 7R £ @ 3 i A AN £ (8174
B SR IEABBENRE(ZS
ZTF ) e
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. LEREFEE
The five highest paid employees during the year FANhER=HEERE=25F%F (=
included three directors (2020: two directors), details of T MBRES) HEMFBEIHR
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 to the PERERNFES s FRBRTMEZ(ZZZ
financial statements. Details of the remuneration for TF =) WIEARREFHITHER
the year of the remaining two (2020: three) highest W= a E EHMEFBET

paid employees who are neither directors nor chief
executive officer of the Company are as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Salaries, allowances and e EAREYWER
benefits in kind 2,282 4,345
Performance related bonuses FRIRARITEAL 792 650
Pension scheme contributions RIKEE B3 36 54
3,110 5,049
The number of non-director and non-chief executive FIA T EH BRI M EEE NIRRT
officer highest paid employees whose remuneration BABZERFEEHBEWNT :

fell within the following bands is as follows:

Number of employees

EEHE
2021 2020
s —EZTF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,00078 7T = -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 78 7T = 1,500,000 78 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 78 7T = 2,000,000 78 7T 1 2
2 3
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FREBiRX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in
which subsidiaries of the Group are domiciled and
operate. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman lIslands, the Company is not subject to any
income tax.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for
one subsidiary of the Group, which is a qualifying entity
under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first
HK$2,000,000 (2020:HK$2,000,000) of assessable
profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2020:
8.25%) and the remaining assessable profits are taxed
at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%).

Pursuant to the PRC Income Tax Law and the
respective regulations, corporate income tax (“CIT")
has been provided at the rate of 25% (2020: 25%) on
the taxable income of the subsidiaries operating in
Mainland China during the year, except for certain
subsidiaries of the Group, which are qualified small and
micro-sized enterprises (“SMEs") under Caishui [2019]
No.13. According to Caishui [2019] No.13 effective
from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021, qualified
SMEs refer to enterprises that do not engage in any
restricted or prohibited industries in the PRC and meet
the criteria of (i) number of staff not exceeding 300; (ii)
total assets not exceeding RMB50,000,000; and (iii)
annual taxable income not exceeding RMB3,000,000.
Qualified SMEs are eligible for a reduced CIT rate of
20%, 75% reduction of taxable income for the first
RMB1,000,000 taxable income and 50% reduction of
taxable income for the remaining taxable income.
According to Caishui [2021] No.12 effective from 1
January 2021 to 31 December 2022, qualified SMEs
are eligible for a further 12.5% reduction of taxable
income for the first RMB1,000,000 taxable income.

AEEBARERELERAEE KB A
BIEEMAR R EMAERDEERE LK
KBEZMEEMBRAAFHR - RIEFRES
BEZERIRA - NRRBAGHEM
PRS®L ©

ERNFRRETBATE S 2 Gat ERE
AR 165% (ZE-FTF :165%) 2
HEERBBFESHEE  BRASEK
—ERB ARSI - :ZH B A B AR AR
FISHMEFNETHNEERELR - 2K
BARAE2,000,0008 (- -FF :
2,000,000 7% 7T ) B & 2R Bl s A Bl & &
825% (=T =T :826%) ' A N
JERBRMIHE R 516.5% (Z T T4 :
16.5%) °

RIER RATEHERAEREAG - SEAT
BHREEMER ) ERFARESRRH
R Hb AE & B BT B 1 A A9 FE FR A U A IR
25% (ZZT-T 4 1 25%) 2 B R1EH 5
H AEBENETHBARKRIN  ZF
NRBHB20191135% TH & B/ 8
WA ([ NERMFIRE]D - RIBEFH
20191135 (RM=—ZE—Nh&E—HA—BZ&—
T F+-_A=+—8H4E%)  AE®%
/INFU SR £ 2 PA AR B I R A BAT R 2
PREISREZ T BFA U T SEIEGD
P HE T AZETIEBB300E : (i) 4
EETEIB AR 50,000,0007T i)
F G RERFRMATER AR 3,000,000
JC o B EB/NEMF B ER]ZH 20% K
RECEFRMSHRME FARK
1,000,000 7T K FE ZR T W A Rl = B 75%
B FE R TR AR - T ER T FY B SR B UK
ABIA] =5 50% K FERTUR AR R © 1R
B 20211128(R=F=—F— A —
BE-_ZT-_—F+=-A=+—B4%%)
BER/NEBA T EE ARE 1,000,000
TR BRA T ZEREIN12.5% iR
TR AR R ©
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FRSBIBX (&)
2021 2020
—EB-—F —EEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current BNHEA 4,447 5,301
Deferred (note 23) BIE (3£ 23) (1,276) 51
Total tax charge for the year FERNBIEY H 4858 3,171 5,32
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit BARRNR REKNE B A B ML
before tax at the statutory rates for the countries in FIEBRRZEEFEFERB AR 2
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries BANMER X HREENEXGE 2 HIE
are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax X 288 URBEBRTE(BDAER
rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., =) BRI 2 SRRIAT
the statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as
follows:
2021 2020
“BC-F b St 23
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
TRT AT
Profit before tax R 250 A i 19,911 32,538
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.6% IR EFEHZE165% 12 2 HE 3,285 16.5 5,369 16.5
Effect on different taxation rate PR AR ARz 52
in Mainland China 151 0.8 882 2.7
Lower tax rates enacted AR RRMRERE
by local tax authorities (1,197) (6.0) (1,273) (3.9)
Income not subject to tax BEFHUA (113) (0.6) (299) (0.9)
Expenses not deductible for tax AAHHE 1,075 5.4 700 2.1
Tax losses utilised from previous periods 2.1 A E R IEEE - - (27) (0.1)
Tax concession HEHE (30) (0.2) - -
Total tax charge for the year ERFIAY Y e 3,171 15.9 5,352 16.4
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11.

12.

DIVIDENDS 1. BRE
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Proposed final — HK1.35 cents BAH — BREER1.3581

(2020: HK1.35 cents) per —E-TF 0 1.3658()

ordinary share 5,400 5,400

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 400,000,000
(2020: 400,000,000) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

12.

REEEBRARERAFARRBRRN
FEERBBEREHAER - TAIEE -

BAREERBRAARGER
&R

EREABFNDERT QAR LB
EaHFBEAEBRBGEFRZMNEFERA
2 2 17400,000,000f% ( =& — T 4 :
400,000,000 f% ) & 38 A% & h0 4 - 35 A% &
HE

AEBRBE-_ZT-_—FR_ZT_TF

+= A=+ BILEEEREETHE
ERH B -
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO 12. AR EEREFEAELER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE 2R (&)
PARENT (Continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share BRERARBERFTERATIERG
are based on: g
Earnings 2021 2020
B —E-—F —ECEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit attributable to ordinary equity & &AREAR K& #5827
holders of the parent, used in the FrARME A E B
basic and diluted earnings HA ARG RA
per share calculations 16,982 27,186

Shares Number of shares
R4 RHEE
2021 2020
—BE- - —E-THF
‘000 ‘000
TR TH%
Weighted average number of STEERERNEFRT
ordinary shares used in the P PR 9 & 3R AR N
basic and diluted earnings TR
per share calculations 400,000 400,000
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - WERXE
Furniture,
fixtures Equipment
Leasehold  andoffice ~ Plantand forrental Motor
Buildings improvements equipment  machinery purpose vehicles Total
HE HE #ER R
BT NERE BLERE  BEREE  BERE RE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TAT TR TAT TAT
31 December 2021 —B--#+-fA=t-H
Cost: KA :
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ-5-F—H 6,238 1,585 2,359 3,592 8,920 543 23,2317
Additions RE - 1,078 216 253 - 1,039 2,586
Disposal HE - - (11) (30) (997) - (1,038)
Exchange realignment B 5 % 200 44 51 120 268 9 692
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—-F+-A=1-H 6,438 2,107 2,615 3,935 8,191 1591 25477
Accumulated depreciation: 2HE:
At 1 January 2021 W-ZE-—%—F-H 2,495 1,155 1,679 3,146 5,334 417 14,226
Provided during the year ENEE 316 324 494 290 1,610 124 3,158
Disposal hrf:3 - - (11) (30) (416) - (457)
Exchange realignment R A% 86 39 # 106 193 7 472
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—F+-f=+-H 2,897 1,518 2,203 3512 6,721 548 17,399
Net book value: REFE -
At 31 December 2021 i S s ey el 3541 1,189 412 423 1470 1,043 8,078
Furniture,
fixtures Equipment
Leasehold  and office Plant and for rental Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment  machinery purpose vehicles Total
HE KE XER FfE
BF NERE BAERE  BRRER  BECRE E @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T i T T Thn T T

31 December 2020 “B-EEt-AZt-H
Cost: R
At 1 January 2020 W-Z-F%-f—H 5,876 1,484 2,244 3,271 8610 529 22,014
Additions NE - 24 49 113 - - 186
Disposal e = - (25) - (210) - (235)
Exchange realignment ErAE 362 71 91 208 520 14 1,212
At 31 December 2020 RZZZFF+-A=1-A 6,238 1,585 2,359 3592 8,920 543 23,237
Accumulated depreciation: 25HIE
At 1 January 2020 A\ZR-%E-A-H 2,056 904 1,136 2,702 3,466 307 10,571
Provided during the year ENEE 29 189 504 263 1,689 9% 3,035
Disposal sk - - (23) - (122) - (145)
Exchange realignment 5 A% 144 62 62 181 301 15 765
At 31 December 2020 RZB-FF+-A=+-H 24% 1,155 1,679 3,146 5,334 417 14,226
Net book value: REFE -
At 31 December 2020 RZF-FF+-A=1-A 3743 430 680 446 3,586 126 9,011
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14. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for the Properties with
lease terms of 1 to 5 years. Generally, the Group is
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased
assets outside the Group.

(a)

Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

14. HE
AEBEREBEA
AERREERSYENTEELY  BE
HiIfR A1 E6F - —RM = AEETE
EREBENINEEREHEAEEE -
(a) FEHEEESE

FRAAKEEBREEENREER

assets and the movements during the year are as FEFRAT
follows:
Properties
ZEYE
HK$'000
FH&T
As at 1 January 2020 RZE_ZFTF—H—H 6,809
Additions NE 6,192
Depreciation charge hES (5,532)
Modification (ES (713)
Exchange realignment PE M, FE 28 146
As at 31 December 2020 and R-BE-_TF+-_A=+—HK
1 January 2021 —E-—F—AF—H 6,902
Additions B 4,089
Depreciation charge hes (5,938)
Modification ES (41)
Exchange realignment P& 5, A% 58
As at 31 December 2021 R-TE-—F+-_A=+—H 5,070
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14. LEASES (Continued) 14. FHE (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) REBERABEA (M)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the FRNEESENFRMAERESBR
movements during the year are as follows: R
2021 2020
=B —F —ECTEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—BHRAEE 7,536 7,229
New leases HEE 4,089 6,188
Accretion of interest recognised FE R A SN
during the year 488 383
Modification B3] (41) (713)
Payments (NE (6,617) (5,700)
Exchange realignment PE i, 38 2 59 149
Carrying amount at 31 December R+=—A=+—HHEKEE 5,514 7,536
Analysed into: =K
Current portion BNERER 5 4,166 4,502
Non-current portion FERNERE 1,348 3,034
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is HEBENRHBE D TETHRE
disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements. MIFE32 R EE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

14. LEASES (Continued) 14. 1HE (&)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation
to leases are as follows:

AEBERABA ()

() EEZTHRIAEHBEFUNSTELN
I

2021 2020
—E- & —E-TF

e —=< —=

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHTT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGEFE 488 383
Depreciation charge of FREEETES
right-of-use assets 5,938 5,632
Total amount recognised in RPN AR
profit or loss 6,426 5,915

(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in
note 26 (c) to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its equipment (note 13) consisting of
five (2020: six) equipment for rental purpose under
operating lease arrangements. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was
HK$2,256,000 (2020: HK$3,625,000), details of which
are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
are as follows:

(d) HEHIRSITHERETEIHRKMNM
7t 26(c) FIKEE -

AEBERBHEA

NEERF LS E L P 0 E R (M
213)  EeiEEREREM RS (=
TTF K8 &E AEBERFRRE
AL U A 2,256,000/ TT(ZFE T4 :
3,625,000/ 7T ) + 515 8 B 75 i 3% M
FE5 ©

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=1+—H A5H
RABE T Al B A 2T B A R R HAE A 72
FRWHRARMMIBHEENFZKOT

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FATT

Within one year —&£R 127 1,881
After one year but within two years — #:@—EEMREA - 127
127 2,008
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. B &EE

Intellectual
Computer property
software license Total
HE
e -GS ERESH st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET FHET
31 December 2021 —E-—5F
+=B=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of RZ-_E = —4F
accumulated amortisation —A—H&KA
PR RETHEEE 726 - 726
Additions NE - 900 900
Amortisation provided TN
during the year (426) (127) (553)
Exchange realignment BEE 5 3 B 15 - 15
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—4F
+=—A=+—H 315 773 1,088
At 31 December 2021 MN_E——F
+-A=+—H
Cost B 7R 1,312 900 2,212
Accumulated amortisation ZETHEEY (997) (127) (1,124)
Net carrying amount FREFE 315 773 1,088
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

15. B EE (&)

Computer
software
BB
HK$'000
FHET
31 December 2020 —E-_EE+-HA=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2020, net of accumulated HR=-Z-F&F—H—HAIRA -
amortisation Mk BatEs 869
Additions NE 165
Amortisation provided during the year F N R (351)
Exchange realignment [ 5, EX 43
At 31 December 2020 R-_E-_TF+_-_H=+—H 726
At 31 December 2020 R-E-_TF+-_HA=1+—H
Cost P AR 1,271
Accumulated amortisation 2t (545)
Net carrying amount BREFE 726
16. INVENTORIES 16. &
2021 2020
—E-—F T EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Components and consumables o KB 1,386 841
Semi-finished products E 13,589 5,264
Finished products SRR 55,927 66,190
70,902 72,295
Less: Provision o B (2,651) (2,277)
68,251 70,018

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
provision for inventory obsolescence, net recognised at
cost of sales amounted to HK$347,000 (2020:
HK$1,898,000).
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17. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 17. EZEWREBREKRE
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THETT

Trade receivables B 5 e IE 98,108 73,478
Bills receivables A EE 5,198 11,975
103,306 85,453

Impairment RE (2,786) (1,770)
100,520 83,683

The Group's trading terms with its customers are AEBREFHNEBESBRAEEREE -

mainly on credit, except for new customers, where PRI FTREP —RAREN
payment in advance is normally required. The credit Ko EEHBRER—Z=H BEF

period is generally one to three months. Each customer PHZREREEERE AKBRERE
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to THIEREEEKFIE  IREEEE
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables THORUEREREEERR - @ A&
and has a credit control policy to minimise credit risk. HEREEAETEH®RY - B2 KK
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior BREWEBRRTER o
management. Trade and bills receivables are non-

interest-bearing.

RB|BEMRIREZBIINTHNE SR
IR R EWE BN IRE DT T (F0RR &S

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice

date and net of loss allowance, is as follows: BEE)
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBxT FHETT
Less than 3 months PR=MEAH 56,982 45,363
3 to 6 months =ZXEA 3,787 10,728
6 to 12 months ~NE+ @A 8,455 2,341
Over 1 year —E A F 31,296 25,251
100,520 83,683

WEERERAT /2021 F3)
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17.

144

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment
of trade and bills receivables are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

EZRBFEAREBRRE (F)

5 8 R T M R 0 40 L (L 1R
BORBIERIT -

2021 2020

—E-—F —E T

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

At beginning of year AEH) 1,770 1,076

Provision for doubtful receivables, FEWRIE R BR B 1

net S 3,062 677
Amount written-off as uncollectible B s £ B4 28

(note 6) (KMizE6) (2,053) -

Exchange realignment bE 5, R B 7 17

At end of year RER 2,786 1,770

An impairment analysis of trade and bills receivables is
performed at each reporting date using a provision
matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade and bills
receivables are written off if past due for more than
three years and are not subject to enforcement activity.
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17. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group's trade and bills receivables

using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2021

17. EZEWFEREWREE (&)

KT ATEERARBERTENES
B M 50R F AE RA  f R
B

R-E-_—-F+=-A=+—H

Pastdue  Past due
more than more than
Past due 1yearbut 2yearsbut Pastdue
within within within over
Current 1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
il —&{8 WEE  AHEBR
k] PR-F PRME PR=F =F @t
ECLs rate BHEERREX 0%-0.8% 5.4% 15.2% 52.7% 100.0%  0%-2.8%
Gross carrying amount EReE(TET)

(HK$'000) 83,922 13,114 5,641 81 548 103,306
ECLs (HK$'000) BECEBER(TEL) 630 708 857 43 548 2,786
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZB-_BF+=-A=+—H

Pastdue  Pastdue
more than ~ more than
Pastdue 1yearbut 2yearsbut  Pastdue
within within within over
Current 1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
ekt —&{ WER  AHER
H18g PR—F PRME PRZF =% @t
. ___________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
ECLs rate RHEEERR 0%-0.3% 3.0% 12.2% 43.8% 100.0% 0%-2.4%
Gross carrying amount FEAE(TAT)

(HK$'000) 68,656 13,218 2,689 26 864 85,453

ECLs (HK$'000) HHEEEE(TATL) 170 397 328 " 864 1,770

145
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18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18. BAMIE - RERHMEWFIE

RECEIVABLES
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECERE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Prepayments R A 16,449 11,526
Deposits and other receivables & R E Aty e W k0B 5,625 11,461
22,074 22,987
The above balances are unsecured and interest-free. LS REERAER S -
The financial assets included in the above balances LR ENERMEERTESE
relate to receivables for which there were no recent BAGERAHECENERFIELR -
history of default and past due amounts. As at 31 RZEBEZ—FR_ZZZZF+=A
December 2021 and 2020, the loss allowance was =+—H  EBEREETEARE -
assessed to be minimal.
19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. RERBFEEEY
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Cash and bank balances e RIBITES 220,180 206,367
Time deposits TEBATE K 3,783 3,783
223,963 210,150
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank RBEER  NREBUARBFEZSE
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted © RIRITA 8 546,747,000 L (=&
to HK$46,747,000 (2020: HK$60,804,000). The RMB is ZZ 4 :60,804,00087T) ° ARKEART
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, BHRLBREMER - A - BE(PEA
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control REMBIINEE RGN ) R(EE - BE
Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sale RITEERRTE)  AEEEBERE
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the HEATHME ETEVIRITIEA R HE

Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other fth & o
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. HERREEEY(E)
(Continued)
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on RITHSRBEEBRITERERZRZEHTH
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits earn EEEEAE c RHEHFERIRSBENE
interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank HAF SRR = BREFI B, o SRIT &S F IR
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with 3T HANE A2 AOREER Y R FEERTT o

no recent history of default.

20. TRADE PAYABLES 20. EZRENRIE
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end & BIRIRE Z A HIS REVE 5 R
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as IR AREC AITIAT -
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Within 1 month DR—1E A 18,471 6,354
1 to 3 months —Z={lA 368 4,115
Over 3 months =@mAMNE 8,252 4,169
27,091 14,638
The trade payables are interest-free and are normally B O RNFIBATGTERBEAZNTEHAS0
settled ranging from 30 to 90 days. £90H o
21. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 21. HbENRERETEA
2021 2020

—B-——F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000

T FHET
Other payables H{th fE S 2R0E 6,062 4,874
Accruals et E A 8,819 8,542
14,881 13,416
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and are HMENRBBTTERBER —FRE

normally settled within one year. fit o
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22. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the
advance payments made by customers while the

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

22. EHERE

AEENANBEEIERNEFLBMRK
I8 - MARREEE M IRTE R ARIR A -

underlying goods or services are yet to be provided.

Changes in the contract liabilities during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

REBEZE_E-_—FR_FT_FTF+_A
—t—HLEFENEHBEEESIEHW

T
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
At beginning of year RE] 15,108 7,430
Revenue recognised that was REGFTAG LA EESR
included in the contract liabilities MBE RS
balance at beginning of year (13,526) (5,961)
Increases due to cash received, HEWIRES MmN - ~EFER
excluding amounts recognised as FAE RSN
revenue during the year 13,172 13,639
At end of year RER 14,754 15,108

23. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

23. EEFIE

EEFBEREREERFRANESHMNT

FEEBIRAE

Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related
depreciation

BBERTEZ
ERE
HK$°000
FET
At 1 January 2020, R=ZE_FTF—H—H-
31 December 2020 and —E-TF+-_A=+—HK
1 January 2021 —ET-_—4%—H—H =
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss BB FEANER 2 ELEFHE (F:E10)
during the year (note 10) 119
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—E+=—A=+—8~ 119
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23. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 23. EREHIE (&)
Deferred tax assets EEREEE
Provision for
inventories and
Unpaid  trade receivables
accrued and written-off  Unrealised
expenses of trade receivables profit Total
FERES
KA ERHEREUR
ExfY CHESZEUFE REREF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET THERT THERT
2021 —E--&
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—F—H—H 34 474 1,521 2,029

Deferred tax credited/(charged) to 5 A/ (BB ) ERBE Y

profit or loss during EIERIA (B3 10)

the year (note 10) (35) 883 547 1,395
Exchange realignment B 5 AR 1 17 - 18
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—%+-fA=+—H - 1,374 2,068 3,442
2020 It S 23
At 1 January 2020 W-Z-FTF—-A—H 123 317 1,623 2,063
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to 3t A /(3N E) FRERZ

profit or loss during ERFIE (FEE10)

the year (note 10) (91) 142 (102) (1)
Exchange realignment i 5 R 2 15 - 17
At 31 December 2020 R-BE-EF+-A=1—H 34 474 1,521 2,029
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23.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% (or a lower rate if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors) withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from
1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2021, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes of the Group's subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, the Group’'s earnings will be retained in
Mainland China, so it is not probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2021, the
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China was
approximately HK$4,562,000 (2020: HK$4,132,000).

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of tax losses of HK$28,128,000 (2020:
HK$26,016,000) as at 31 December 2021 as they have
arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.
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23. EEHIE (&)

RIFPBEBRAEIOE - RSN
BRELCERARAINEREEST RN
BIRE10% (BN EIERE E
PrBRIAER AR B HE - QA HER
EOBRE) BN - ZREH_TTN\EF
—A—HBEAR XERAR_ZTTLF
TZAZ=+T—HRELNEF - ALK
SEARNPEAMKILZ ZEFRBLR
ARE—TENGF-A—BEELZA
A2 Ik 2 BB B FRFNFL

R-EBE-_—F+_-_A=+—H £5H
SRR BR A BBABR BN
ZHIB AR ZRE D ZF RN Z BN
HRELEMIE - EERA AEEZA
FEREBRFEA  MZEMEA T
R FB R ARG AT e D IRz S & F -
R-ZT-——F+-_F=+—H EEKEZ
FERMH B AR A B MR E=ZE5
47 54,562,000 o( = T = T F:
4,132,000 7T) °

MN-B-—&F+-A=+—8 "  LEH®
FHIEE18 28,128,000 8 L (=T =_FTF :
26,016,000 %7t ) ERIELEFI B E E -
EXRCHBEEZHBRARIE2ERE
— BB YRAETKAIGEEELEER
Foa B KSR B A 2 TR IE S8 -
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24.

25.

SHARE CAPITAL 4. BRI
2021 2020
—E—F —ETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
400,000,000 (2020: 400,000,000) 400,000,000 & (ZZ=FF :
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 400,000,000 %) F%E{E

0.01 BTHE B 4,000 4,000

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’'s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the financial statements.

Other reserve

The balance represented the aggregate paid-in capital
of the subsidiaries acquired, offset by investment costs
in subsidiaries of the Company during the
reorganisation of the Company in connection with the
listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange.

Statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, the Company's subsidiaries registered in the PRC
shall appropriate a certain percentage of their net profit
after tax (after offsetting any prior years’' losses)
calculated under the accounting principles generally
applicable to the PRC enterprises to the reserve fund.
When the balance of this reserve fund reaches 50% of
the entity’s capital, any further appropriation is optional.
The statutory surplus reserve can be utilised to offset
prior years' losses or to increase capital. However, the
balance of the statutory surplus reserve must be
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the capital after
these usages. After making the appropriation to the
statutory surplus reserve, the Company's subsidiaries
may also appropriate their profits for the year to the
discretionary surplus reserve upon approval by the
board of directors or the shareholders in a general
meeting.

5. f#fE

AEBNAEERBEFES BT
REB BRI RS D OGAERE
%27 -

Hfvf#

ZAERA R FTU B I B & BB AN 42
B WARBRARRRO KB £
METEAREARAMERARIRE
PRI

EEBRSRFEE

RIRF BARRAR FOAR - K B
MR A BB R R AR BRI R AL (R 3H
TREFBERR)NETEI L EERFE
Ee RRBTIEEE-—REAS
RAGE - EZHEESERINEER
BAHE0% B - AIE R ERE
IR - AT BRG] AFREESF
BIRSIENE R - AW - AEBBRFER
SR BREBNZERERELANE
125% o $ETF BEREMBIE L BRIZ
ARBIMBARKREETSHRRIOBE
RE EHAERTAIBEFERGEFBEER
BRI -

HEERAERAR /2021 F3f

151



|
)

31 December 2021

152

w

B B AR Y EE (AR

—E-——#+-_H=1+—H

26. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

(b)

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$4,089,000 (2020: HK$6,192,000) and
HK$4,089,000 (2020: HK$6,188,000), respectively,
in respect of lease arrangements for the
Properties.

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions
to intangible assets of HK$900,000 (2020: Nil) in

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

. RERERERME

(a)

TEHFRERS

FN - AEBERZEMERELH
NERAEEERMERRBENIER S
N5 Rl 44,089,000 T (ZE—
T 16,192 000?%7%)&4 089,000
B (ZZF =ZZ 4 :6,188,000/%
JC) °

RENAN  NEBBANBEZET AN
I & = W JE 3R £ 38 10 & 900,000

respect of intellectual property license. BIT(ZE_TF /&)
Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) MEFTHEENAEGSEH
activities:
2021 —B-—F
Lease
liabilities
HEEE
HK$°000
FHET
At 1 January 2021 RZFE——F—H—H 7,536
New leases FEE 4,089
Lease modification HEEET (41)
Foreign exchange movement YN A @J 59
Interest expense B 488
Interest expense classified as DEAKERENEN
operating cash flows FIEMAX (488)
Changes from financing cash flows A mEE (6,129)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H 5,514
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26. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 26. MEBRESRERMET (H)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) BMETBELNEEEE : (B
activities: (Continued)
2020 —ECBH
Lease
liabilities
HEaE
HK$'000
T4
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-_FTF—H—H 7,229
New leases g 6,188
Lease modification HEEE] (713)
Foreign exchange movement HINGEE 5B 149
Interest expense N3 383
Interest expense classified as DEAKEERESRERN
operating cash flows FERAXZ (383)
Changes from financing cash flows RMERSRE=ZE (5,317)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_ZTF+_-_A=+—H 7,536
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEMBRSRLAE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the eEReRnERTEENHEER
consolidated statement of cash flows is as ML ABEEAT -
follows:
2021 2020
B —F —ETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Within operating activities KT EE N 488 383
Within financing activities BEESEEN 6,129 5,317

mEnRERAR/2021F% 153



N
N

B B AR Y EE (AR

31 December 2021 —FE—-—#+1+_-HA=+—H

27

28.

29.

154

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 27. EEERH
As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not pledge any RZE-_—F+-H=+—H X5H
assets (31 December 2020: Nil). WEEAERNEE(ZZE_SF+ A
=+—H:%\)-
COMMITMENTS 28. A
As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any RZE-_—F+-H=+—H X5H
significant commitments. 3 A fa] AR HHE o
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29. BBARS
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the BRI 5% 35 B 765 e 2= HLAth 30 5 PR EF L 2 32
financial statements, the Group had the following 298 REBRFNEBEBE T ETUT
transactions with related parties during the year: R
(a) Names of the Group's principal related (a) XEEXEEBHIZ2HER B
parties and their relationship with the BRHEAEEZRARE :
Group:
Name of related parties Relationship
BBLZHE EB 2hES
Mr. YEUNG Director
i BF
Ms. WONG Director
Tz 5%
Peiport Scientific Limited A company controlled by Mr. YEUNG and Ms. WONG
BERHERR AR B R T T EFIH —FH AR
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(b) Significant related party transactions

(c)

during the year are as follows:

29. FEBAERZ (&)

(b) FREAWEBLIXZNT :

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E FET F&T
Rental fee paid to directors  [AEEXNHBEE B (i) 864 1,423
Rental fee paid to Peiport MEERHEBR A R T
Scientific Limited MEEER (i) - 1,850
Acquisition of right-of-use I RREEE
assets (i) 388 4,246
Notes: BREE -

(i) Certain subsidiaries in Mainland China rented commercial units
from Mr. YEUNG and Ms. WONG as offices and the transactions
were conducted in accordance with the terms in the relevant
lease agreements. These are continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(i) The transactions were conducted in accordance with the terms
in the relevant lease agreements. These are continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(iii) The acquisition of right-of-use assets were conducted in
accordance with the terms in the relevant lease agreements.
These are connected transactions under 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group:

Details of the compensation of key management
personnel of the Group, who are the directors, are
disclosed in note 8 to the financial statements.

(0] FEAME THBRARRGEERE
I EMEEMERRER A
R 5 THREAARITE S 0 R ETT -
BELTRAE VAT  ZERFFE
ERS -

(i) RBIREAABAE G ZRTETT
RIEETRAUE14AE - ZERFE
BER S -

(i)  WEEAREEDREMABAE DS

GRFETT ° RIFETRRIE14AE -
REREERS -

(c) AEBMITEEBASZFHH :

ARETEEEAR(SHEE) Y
FEN A B T 3R M A S T o
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

31.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, all financial assets
of the Group including trade and bills receivables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents were
stated at amortised cost.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, all financial
liabilities of the Group including trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals and
lease liabilities were stated at amortised cost.

The Group’s classification of its financial assets and
liabilities is explained in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, management has
assessed that the fair values of trade and bills
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals and lease liabilities
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's financial controller is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. At each
reporting date, the financial controller analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
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BRERE S 2EBMTA

RZEZ—FE_FT=_FTF+=A
=+—H AEEMESREE B
B ZEBGRIA R ERER - 5T ATENRK
B RehEMERFIENSBEEI
N385 N30 E BT HRARTER -

RZEZ—FE_FT=_FTF+=A
=+—H AEEMESREE B
B SRR - T AHME R KIE R IE
FEANSREEREEREHIREH
XA FIHR o

AEEHHEREERABD ENREE
N B mAME24 -

TRMIENAFERAFERBR

RZEZ—FRER_ZFT=_FTF+=A
=+—H BEELHTHERE BH
FEUGIAE R R EE - T ATRT A -
ReRHEMBEBRFENEREE Re
FESEEY BHEMNKE  FTAE
MENFEREFERNSRE G RE
EaEN A ATEHEERABMASE  HE
ZHRZETAEREHAEIE -

AEBEZUBREREETERTAR
FEFEZERRERERF REHRER
B HeEs e TABEZE
KEFEMETAEMANTIEZEH AR -

EREENBBEZRAFELETNER
B R (M FEE SE B IHE) WIS T
THXSFRIBEMTANEHE -
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. cRIEREEREBERBE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by subsidiaries
in currencies other than the subsidiaries’ functional
currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible

AEEZIECRHIARERERAS
FEY RFeRMIAZIEREDR
rEEZ2EERES AKEHES
BEMWEMEEIRSRAE WEHE
WHRERERRERBSEMNRIEA - B
BEREHZE -

AEBzeMITAMEENTIERRR
SMNERER - EEERRREE S BB
EEe MR EEEZFRARMEK
R - BRABERR TX#ta -

4B R B
AEEAERZERRR - BRARRIR

BB ARIAMBRREEEBAINZ
B AL 2 SHE SR o

TERTERBEMEETRERT
45 HIR A B 2 R B A FI R S 8 8

change by 1% in the US$ exchange rate against RMB, ENBEATEEHHETLLARKE
with all other variables held constant, of the Group's KEBBIEELE) 1% WFUHNE
profit before tax due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
If USS strengthens against RMB ETHAREIHE (924) (1,034)
If US$ weakens against RMB ETHARKEE 924 1,034

The Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates.

AEEEBTYEREREHEIEHIN
PE Bz o
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group’'s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group's
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for
financial assets.

As at 31 December 2021

32. eRIEMEE B ERBUK (#)

FERR

AR RS R RS
ETEE - AEENEEAREEER
ERERETEE Y B ARS R
FUILR - o REE S EE R
BEEY  AAREEROEERRYL
FEA -

RERERKFERER

TERIBFNERAEENEERENEER
BEkEaEERE  FEERNAHE
B (BRIEEMER AT EEANETMBER
AZBAWIERTIES)  RR=ZZT=—
ER-ZE_EF+_A=1+—BHER
BEER DT - FT2FIMEHESREESRE
EAAKRME -

R=FB=—%+=A=1+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12EA%H
5] 2HBHEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total
F1RB BB F3WBR  ERE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER
Trade and bills receivables* BHRENTEREREE - - - 103,306 103,306
Financial assets included in STARNTE ke Rk
prepayments, deposits, At AN RAE
and other receivables
— Normal** = Eq 5,625 - - - 5,625
— Doubtful** — TR ** - - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEN
— Not yet past due — RABH 223,963 - - - 223963
229,588 - - 103,306 332,894

158  PEIPORTHOLDINGSLTD. / ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
SRR EE ()

31 December 2021 —FE—-—#+—-HA=+—H

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

32. cRIEMEE B ERBUR (#)

Credit risk (Continued) FEERMK (&)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging BEeRBERFERER (F)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2020 R-B-_EHE+-A=+—H

12-month

ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A7
FEBR THRAEEHE
Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1ER  22BR E3WR BAE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TR TR TR

ERRMFEREURE" - -
STABNTUR  RER
EtRUFEN AR

Trade and bills receivables*
Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits,

85,453 85,453

and other receivables
— Normal** = ek 11,461 - - - 11,461
— Doubtful** — AR * - - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents RERFEEEN
— Not yet past due — HRE 210,150 - - - 210,150
221,611 - - 85,453 307,064
o For trade and bills receivables to which the Group applies the simplified * HAKEEABCRERENE S EKRIE

approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is
disclosed in note 17 to the financial statements.

* %

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when they
are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be

“doubtful .

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
certain concentrations of credit risk as 36% (2020:
32%) of the Group's trade receivables were due from
the Group's two largest customers.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and bills
receivables are disclosed in note 17 to the financial

statements.

RIEWR R BB A R A & B R B 15 3R
RMFE1THE -

> fEF AR R R REMERTIERN S
MEETAAPHETBEENBETZEBMEE
= B R B IR DA IR 2 00 - B
HEEEZBERAIER] - B8 &REE
MEEERRER (A5

RIREHR  REBASETEEED
Bk BEASENESEKRIEFRS
36% (ZZT_FF : 32%) HHAAEEM
REFHER o

BRAAKRERE ZEWHARERRE

MERNEERRNEZEBCBERE
REATEEHRMET7 -
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. sRIAREEEERBGR (E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk RENE £ Bk
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between AEBERESBEAKEMGBRABEE
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of HEMERESHEMRTEZE 2 HN
internally generated cash flows from operations. The T AEBTEHRNEEEZESMRNR
Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to AW RELER B 58 B 15 B R Al Z A A
ensure that it has adequate financial resources in B -

meeting its financial obligations.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as REBRRE BRIZE HAREE R
at the end of the reporting period, based on the TRIBEINEBERAT
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2021 —E-—F
On demand
and
less than
1year 1tob years Total
RERR
PR—F —ZFHEF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET THET FHE T
Trade payables B 5 e FIE 27,091 - 27,091
Financial liabilities included st A EH fib fE {3018 &
in other payables and fErtE RS RAE
accruals 1,659 - 1,659
Lease liabilities HEaE 4,431 1,428 5,859
33,181 1,428 34,609
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

32. cRIEMEE B ERBUR (#)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REE SRR (&)
2020 —ECEF
On demand
and
less than
1 year 1 to b years Total
RERK
DR—F —ZEZAF wEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FHTT FH&TT
Trade payables 2 5 e3R8 14,638 - 14,638
Financial liabilities included &t A E fih & {~f 38 &%
in other payables and [t EANTRAR
accruals 1,271 - 1,271
Lease liabilities HEAE 4,858 3,185 8,043
20,767 3,185 23,952
Capital management EXER

The primary objectives of the Group’'s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

AEEEAEEZTEARR/RELE
BREKENENREFBROERL
FoAXHEFHERERBRREERA
flz=

ANEE B A FE A AR B R AR R B E R
EREHEEEEREERIELFHE -
RER I ABRERNERE  AEENER
BRS TREMRE - MRFREER
REITHIR D - AEEBAETFERIN
HHEMNERRE - RBEZT=_—F
F—_E_EF+_A=+—HULEFE -
EREARZBIE  HERSIEFILEED
EXEIE=E)I0
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

33. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 33. REHESH
There were no significant events after 31 December B —
2021 and up to the approval date of the financial
statements. %o

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 34. &RARMBMRRT
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of

Ft-A=+—"BEEMH
BREHFERRQLHE ABEAE

BRARRRNHEERROP AR RNEKD

the Company at the end of the reporting period is as BRI
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB D RHIRE = -
Right-of-use assets EREEE 156 390
Total non-current assets IERBEELE 156 390
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Amount due from subsidiaries e NG ] 24,713 22,537
Prepayments, deposits TARRIR « 1=e KA M W GRIE
and other receivables 742 484
Cash and cash equivalents B RBRESEEY 54,700 62,070
Total current assets TEEEAE 80,155 85,091
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Amount due to subsidiaries FETH B A TI=R8 7,022 4,260
Other payables and accruals EmEMZUAERESER 222 285
Lease liabilities HEERE 346 361
Total current liabilities TEIAEAE 7,590 4,906
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 72,565 80,185
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)

34. RRQAIBBEMRRE (E)

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HWEERRBERS
LIABILITIES 72,721 80,5675
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEMF
Lease liabilities HEaRE - 346
Total non-current liabilities SERBaELE - 346
Net assets BEFE 72,721 80,229
EQUITY e
Share capital A% 2 4,000 4,000
Reserves (note) (M) 68,721 76,229
Total equity R ABE 72,721 80,229

The amount is less than HK$1,000.

SR P1,00087T
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 34. &AQARIB#HERREK (F)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: B sE
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RARIEEBRENT -
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
BARE 2FER Fob
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHT FHT
At 1 January 2020 R=ZZT=TF—HA—H 102,246 (23,790) 78,456
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEEBEER - (2,227) (2,227)

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 R-Z-_ZTF+_A=+—AHF

—Z2-—#—f—H 102,246 (26,017) 76,229

Final 2020 dividend paid BN-Z-_ZTERHERE (5,400) - (5,400)

Total comprehensive loss for the year FANEAEEBIERE - (2,108) (2,108)

At 31 December 2021 R-T=——F+=f=+—H 96,846 (28,125) 68,721
35. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 35. HtAEMKRRK

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised BEBRRER_E__F=A=1+HK

for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2022. i Vs |
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